LT

o

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES NHREmLEIW

ARG new ha to werk

29 HAZEN DRIVE, CONCORD, NH 03301-6527

: 603-271-6891 1-800-852-3345 Ext, 6891

Nicholas A. Toumpas y
,Commissionerp Fax: 603-271-5318 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

José Thier Montero
Director

April 27,2010

His Excellency, Governor John H. Lynch
and the Honorable Executive Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 0330]

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS), Division of Public Health Services
(DPHS), Bureau of Prevention Services, Obesity Prevention Program (OPP) and The Tobacco Prevention and
Control Program (TPCP), to enter into an agreement with JSI Research and Training Institute, ‘Inc., dba
Community Health Institute (Vendor #161611-B001 ), 501 South Street, Second F loor, Bow, NH 03304, to assess
the feasibility of statewide implementation of public policy relative to nutrition, physical activity, and tobacco
prevention, effective April 28, 2010 or date of Governor and Council approval, whichever is later, through
Januvary 31, 2012. Funding is available through the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (ARRA)
in an amount not to exceed $410,837. Funds are available in the following accounts for SFY 2010 and SEY 2011,
and are anticipated to be available in SFY 2012 depending upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds in the future operating budgets, with authority to adjust amounts if needed and justified, between State

Fiscal Years.

05-95-90-901510-0915 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES,
HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES, BUREAU OF PREVENTION SERVICES, ARRA TDB.

Fiscal Year Class/Object | Class Title Job Number Total Amount l
SEFY 2010 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 30901001 $50,777
SFY 201t 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 90901001 $240,040
| SFY 2012 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 90901001 $120,020
] | Total $410,837
EXPLANATION

Funds in this agreement will be used to assess the feasibility, and support the implementation of, the
following high-impact public policy “Access Strategies” in licensed child care settings, public schools and
workplaces: 1. Increase healthy food/drink availability, and physical activity; 2. Restrict television time in child
care settings; 3. Strengthen administrative rules to mirror RSA 126:K7 (24/7 tobacco free public schools) in child
care settings; 4. Limit unhealthy food/drink availability in schools; and 5. Provide recommendations addressing
comprehensive clean indoor air needs in NH and assess alternatives local entities can utilize to work towards

restoring local control.
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A final policy intervention assessment report will be utilized to provide education to increase or
strengthen the “Access Strategies” listed above with guidance from the DPHS. The Department of Education and
the DHHS Childcare Licensing Bureau have agreed to work with DPHS on these initiatives.

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc., dba Community Health Institute, Inc. (JSI/CHI) was selected for
this project through a competitive bid process. A legal notice was published in the New Hampshire Union Leader
soliciting Request for Proposals (RFP) on Friday, January 29, 2010; Sunday, January 31, 2010; and February 1,
2010. In addition, a bidders’ conference call and face to face meeting was held on Wednesday, February 3, 2010,

The RFP was also posted on the DHHS web site.

Three letters of intent were received in response to the RFP. In all, two proposals were submitted for
consideration. A review committee meeting was convened consisting of four professionals that are both internal
and external to DHHS who collectively provided expertise in tobacco prevention and control, obesity prevention,
nutrition, child care licensing, program health and administration, contracting, policy, public information,
community-based services, and public health, The scoring criteria was based on a 100-point scale and focused on
the bidder’s capacity to perform the scope of service and the ability to collaborate with local partners. ‘

The reviewers independently read and scored each proposal before meeting to average the scores. After
determining that the aggregated average scores ditfered by less than three points the review team recommended
that the bidders, as allowed under the RFP, provide oral presentations to the review committee. The DPHS
requested each agency to respond to five questions that addressed key issues raised by the original review
committee. The two bidders gave a live presentation to the original review committee and handed out copies of
their written responses to the questions. JSI/CHI was awarded the bid based on the scores from the live
presentation. Their organization’s mission, infrastructure, and previous experience demonstrate that they have the
capacity to meet or exceed the deliverables set forth in the agreement and they articulated a clear vision and scope

of service. The RFP scoring summary is attached.

This is the first contract with this agency for these services. These funds are available due to the
American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA) funding award to New Hampshire to assess the feasibility of
and support statewide implementation of public policy relative to nutrition, physical activity, and tobacco

prevention.
Performance measures are located in Exhibit A and will be used to measure the effectiveness of the

agreement.

The geographic area to be served is statewide.

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds (ARRA).
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In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be requested to
support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

sé Thier Montero, MD
Director

Approved by:@ﬂj\ M

Nicholas A. Toumpds
Commissioner

JTM/SLM/jpr

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and Jfamilies in providing
upportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 1/09)

Subject; Communities Pufting Prevention to Work; Statewide Policy and Environmental Assessment, Recommendations and
Collaboration to Enhance Obesity and Tobacco Prevention and Control Public Health Policies

AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION,

1.1  State Agency Name

NH Department of Health and Human Services
Divigion of Public Health Services

1.2 State Agency Address

29 Hazen Drive
Concord, NH 03301-6504

1.3  Contractor Name

John Snow Research and Training Institute, Inc., dba Community

1.4  Contractor Address

510 South Street 2nd Floor
Bow, NH 03303

Health Institute, Inc
1.5 Contracter Phone 1.6 Account Number 1.7 Completion Date [ 1.8 Price Limitation
Number
$410,837

(603) 573-3300 010-090-0915-102-500731

January 31, 2012

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency

Joan H. Ascheim, Bureau Chief
' A

1.10  State Agency Telephone Number

603-271-4501

1.11 Contractor/Signdtufe

/

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Jonathan Stewart, Director of Community Heaith Institute

1.13 Acknowl*dge:\ﬁent' Staté of NH, County of Merrimack

On ‘-Hﬁﬂg betore the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12; or satisfactorily proven to be the
hose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed-this document in the capacity indicated in block

ARIELLE SLAM, Notary Publie
My Commission Feniras April 15, 2014

person

1.12,

1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace
[Seal] LALAP

1.13.2 Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

Arielle Slem , /[/(;/gf}y VA

1.14 State Agency Signature 1.I5  Name and Title of State Agency Signatory
% @V—\_\q Joan H. Ascheim, Bureau Chief

1.16 Appedval by the N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (if appiicable)

By: Director, On;

1.17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution)

By / %M (//@éz/m LZ\)@C/&/J /}Aﬁ/m On: 5/ l0/10

1.18~ Approval by the Governor and Executive Council

By:

Page | of 4

{nital SC__(____

Tene



2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the ugency identitied in block 1.1 (“State™), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor”) to pertorm,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identitied and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference

{“Setvices™),

. 3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
comrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, this
Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shalt
not become effective until the date the Governor and
iixecutive Council approve this Agreement (“Effective Date™),
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date

specified in block 1.7,

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
tunds. [n the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

- 5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.
5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for ail
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services, The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price,
3.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Apreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
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5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set torth in block

L.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY, ~

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
taws, In addition, the Contractor shall comply with all

applicable copyright laws,
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall

‘not discriminate against employees or applicants for

employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity”), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.,

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws,

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement. '

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative, In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

Contractor initials: /Afﬁ

Date: Y iﬂ 1




8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES,

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shali constitute an event of default hereunder
{“Event of Default™):

8.1.1 tailure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occutrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions;
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any daimmages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9, DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/

PRESERVATION,
8.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data" shall mean all

information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
ail whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Contidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disciosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (**Termination Report”} describing in
detail all Services pertormed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
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Report shall be identical to those of any Final Repoat
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'’S RELATION TO THE STATE, In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shail have anthority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees,

12, ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of
the N.H. Department of Administrative Services. None of the
Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor without the
prior written consent of the State.

13, INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemmnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses sutfered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor, Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement,

14. INSURANCE.
14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and

maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $250,000 per claim and $2,000,000 per
aoccurrence; and

14.1.2 fire and extended coverage insurance covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement,
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the
expiration date of each of the insurance policies. The
certificate(s) of insurance and any renewals thereof shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. Each

Contractor Initials: QA“'

Date: 7w




certificate(s) of insurance shall contain a clause requiring the
insurer to endeavor to provide the Contracting Olfficer
identitied in block 1.9, or his or her successor, no less than ten
(10) days prior written notice of cancellation or modification

of the policy.

15. WORKERS* COMPENSATION,

L3.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies. and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers’ Compensation”).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers’ Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shail furnish
the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the manner
described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shalt not be
responsible for payment of any Workers’ Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

t6. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
‘failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.,

7. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

8. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire.

19, CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is
the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutuai
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

Page 4 of 4

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benetfit,

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in ne way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in
the interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of
this Agreerment,

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS, Additional provisions set forth
it the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference,

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and

citect.

24, ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Contractor Initials:

Date: ‘rﬂ'&\@




NH Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit A

Scope of Services

Communities Putting Prevention to Work: Statewide Policy and Environmental Assessment, Recommendations

and Collaboration to Enhance Obesity and Tobacco Prevention and Control Public Health Policies

CONT‘R'ACT PERIOD: April 28, 2010 or date of G&C approval, whichever is later, through

January 31, 2012,

CONTRACTOR NAME: JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc., dba Community
Health Institute

ADDRESS: 501 South State Street, 2nd Floor, Bow, NH 03304
DIRECTOR: Jonathan Stewart
TELEPHONE: (603) 573-3300

The Contractor shall:

Assess the feasibility of implementing the following high-impact public policy “Access Strategies” in
licensed child care settings, public schools and workplaces. Develop a final policy intervention
assessment report to be utilized to increase or strengthen the “Access Strategies” listed in 1-3 below with

guidance from the DPHS.

L.

Increase availability of healthy food and beverages, limiting or restricting screen time, requiring
daily physical activity, and decreasing exposure to environmental tobacco smoke in licensed

child care settings. '
Strengthen regulatory rules to mirror RSA 126:K7 (24/7 tobacco free public schools) in licensed

child care settings.

Limit unhealthy food/drink availability in schools.

Provide recommendations addressing comprehensive clean indoor air that includes local
government ability to effect local decisions (NH preemption status).

Develop a report outlining recommendations based on the completed review of policies, laws
and rules as listed above; develop steps toward policy, law and rule implementation in childcare
and school settings, and draft a strategic plan for completion of the policy, law and or rule
change. Engage stakeholders for a final working meeting to review findings, recommendations
and strategic plan, and to solicit feedback. Finalize report tor dissemination/utilization.

The final policy analysis document and strategic plan will provide the following; feasibility assessments
and needed trainings regarding updating NH Child Care Licensing Rules, NH Department of Education
School Approval Rules, and policy analysis and education to increase the ability of municipalities to
enact local tobacco-free policies and education to strengthen the indoor smoking law so that it is

comprehensive,
L. General Provisions

A. Relevant Policies and Guidelines

Page i of 32 <{'(
Contractor Initials:

Date: )3/ 2010




I. Through this contract and under direction of the NH Obesity Prevention Program (OPP)
and Tobacco Prevention and Control Program (TPCP) contractor shall implement priority
evidence-based policy and practices given available resources and with guidance from

the program.

Contractor will develop targets for the contract performance measures/outcomes.

b

3. Utilize the work plan template (to be developed with OPP/TPCP statf) and a brief
narrative (not to exceed 5 pages) for quarterly and final reports.

4. Upload or provide reports electronically to DPHS.
II.  Minimal Standards of Core Services

A. Staffing

1.‘ Within the first month of contractual approval through the G&C process, hire or
designate | FTE Health Analyst/Project Director; 1 FTE Health Educator; .5 FTE
Evaluator; .5 FTE Administrative Assistant; and .20 accounts payable clerk.

2, Qualifications for Project Director
a. Bachelor or Master Degree in Health Promotion, Disease Prevention, Public

Health, or related field.
b. Demonstrated ability to provide strong core leadership to achieve success
including: building and maintaining relationships, effective written and oral
communication. :
Strong organization skills with ability to delegate tasks, and track inputs and

performance measures/outcomes,

Ability to collect and aggregate surveillance data.
Experience with policy analysis and comprehensive knowledge of legislative

and rule making processes.

Qualifications for Health Educator
a. Bachelor or Master's Degree Health Promotion, Health Education,

Disease Prevention or related field.
b. Demonstrated ability to provide strong core leadership to achieve success

including: building and maintaining relationships, effective written and

oral communication,
c. Experience developing educational materials, public education

campaigns, or social marketing campaigns.

3. Vacancies
a. Report staff turnover to NH OPP/TPCP in writing within two weeks of

notification of intention to vacate.
b. Fill vacant positions within two months of vacancy occurrence.

4. Training and Technical Assistance
a. Proactively ensure that fiscal staff is aware of budget details, monthly

expenditure reports, and line item change request and timelines.
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b. Attend scheduled group training and technical assistance sessions provided by
NH OPP/TPCP staff on topics related to project and share the information to

- inform local initiatives and activities.
Participate in one-on-one training and technical assistance as determined by NH

OPP/TPCP and/or requested by the contractor. _
d. Utilize the work plan template to report process, activities, outputs, and

outcome information under Section B.

B. Deliverables: Coordination of Services, Trainings, and Meetings

l.

Develop a plan to implement relevant recommendations of the NH Commission on
Prevention of Childhood Obesity. Specifically, to improve access to healthy food and
drink choices, require daily physical activity, and restrict screen time in licensed child
care and improve access to healthy food and drink choices in NH public schools.
Additional policy recommendations will include eliminating exposure to secondhand
and third-hand smoke for children enrolled in licensed NH child care programs.

Objective 1: By December 2011, a policy document and strategic plan will be developed
and disseminated that includes recommendations for comprehensive nutrition and
physical activity requirements and the elimination of secondhand and third-hand smoke

~ exposure.

Outputs:
* Draft a proposed voluntary policy and impact paper on recommended changes to

ticensing rules based on Obesity Commission report.
By June 2011, complete the trainings on voluntary policy and impact for potential

rule changes with stakeholders and providers.
By December 2011, complete the policy document evaluation, complete and

disseminate the strategic plan.
A minimum of ten percent of child care programs develop voluntary policies based

on strategic plan and provider trainings.

Provide information and resources to Department of Education (DOE) in support of
amending NH School Approval Rules to improve access to healthy food and drink
choices and limit unhealthy food/drink availability.

Objective 2: By December 2012, ED-306 will include regulations regarding competitive
toods and schools consistent with the recommendations of the Institute of Medicine

Report (IOM) Nutrition Standards for Foods in Schools.

Outputs:

Dratt the proposed DOE school rules and meet with DOE legislative liaison.

By June 2011, conduct trainings on rule changes in advance of implementation.
By September 2011, rules are adopted.

By December 2011, complete the evaluation of rule implementation,

By December 2011, complete the policy document evaluation, complete and
disseminate the strategic plan and complete the trainings relative to Obj.| and 2.

3. Comprehensive clean indoor air for all,
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Objective  3: * Conduct research and assess national public policies, make
recommendations based on best practices and comprehensive clean indoor air and
preemption and provide education and training sessions to stakeholders.

Qutputs: '
¢ By December 2010 draft report share with TPCP statf,

By June 2011, hold at least one stakehoider meeting to report findings and collect
stakeholder feedback. '

By August 2011, finalize report and disseminate to members of the NH Tobacco Free

Coalition and Comprehensive Cancer Collaboration. -
* By September 2011, identify stakeholders taking action steps based on report

recommendations.

C.  Deliverables: Development, Utilization and Reporting of Work Plans

Performance work plans are required annually for this program and are used to monitor
achievement of standard measures of performance of the services provided under this
contract. The work plans are a key component of the DPHS performance-based

contracting system and of this contract,

Within the first 6 weeks of contract approval, and with technical assistance from

OPP/TPCP, develop a work plan using the OPP/TPCP template to track

achievements of performance measures using Best Practice Models. :

b. The Director/Educator shall incorporate required and developmental performance

measures, detined by the TPCP/OPP, into the agency’s work plan.-

Submit the following to the TPPC/OPP staff, which will be used as the basis upon

which subsequent funding requests are determined:

0 Quarterly narrative and work plan updates with performance measures are due
cach year to OPP/TPCP; dates will be set once contract is approved.

a,

{II.  Publications Funded Under Contract

1. The DHHS and/or its funders will retain COPYRIGHT ownership for any and all original
materials produced with DHHS contract funding, including, but not limited to, brochures,

resource directories, protocols or guidelines, posters, or reports.

2. All documents (written, video, audio) produced, reproduced or purchased under the contract
shail have prior approval from DPHS before printing, production, distribution, or use.

The Contractor shall credit DHHS on all materials produced under this contract following
the instructions outlined in Exhibit C-1 (5). '

[ understand and agree to this scope of services to be completed in the contract period. In the
event our agency is having trouble fulfilling this contract we will contact the Tobacco Prevention and

Contro} Program/Obesity Prevention Program immediately for additional guidance.
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit B

Purchase of Services
Contract Price

Communities Putting Prevention to Work: Statewide Policy and Environmental Assessment, Recommendations

and Collaboration to Enhance Obesity and Tobacco Prevention and Control Public Health Policies

CONTRACT PERIOD: April 28, 2010 or date of G&C approval, whichever is later, through

Vendor # 161611-B001 Job # 90901001

January 31, 2012,

CONTRACTOR NAME: JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc., dba Community
Health Institute

ADDRESS: 501 South State Street, 2nd Floor, Bow, NH 03304

Director of Community Health  Jonathan Stewart

Institute
TELEPHONE: (603)573-3300

Appropriation # 010-090-0915-102-50073 1

The total amount of all payments made to the Contractor for cost and expenses incurred in the performance of
the services during the period of the contract shall not exceed:; _

$410,837.00 for Statewide Policy and Environmental Assessment; Recommendations and Collaboration to
Enhance Obesity and Tobacco Prevention and Control Public Health Policies, is funded with 100% Federal
Funds through The American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (ARRA) Communities Putting

Prevention to Work (CPPW); Centers for Disease Control (CDC) CFDA #93.723.

TOTAL: $410,837.00

2,

wh

The Contractor agrees to use and apply all contract funds from the State for direct and indirect costs and
expenses including, but not limited to, personnel costs and operating expenses related to the Services, as
detatled in the attached budgets. Allowable costs and expenses shall be determined by the State in accordance
with applicable state and federal laws and regulations. The Contractor agrees not to use or apply such funds
for capital additions or improvements, entertainment costs, or any other costs not approved by the State,

Invoices shall be submitted by the Contractor to the State in a form satisfactory to the State for each of the
Service category budgets. Said invoices shail be submitted within twenty (20) working days following the
end of the month during which the contract activities were completed, and the final invoice shall be due to the
State no later than sixty (60) days after the contract Completion Date. Said invoice shall contain a description
of all allowable costs and expenses incurred by the Contractor during the contract period.

Payment will be made by the State agency subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient
funds are available in the Service category budget line items submitted by the Contractor to cover the costs

and expenses incurred in the performances of the services.

The Contractor may amend the contract budget for any Service category through line item increases,
decreases, or the creation of new line items provided these amendments do not exceed the contract price for
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that particular Service category. Such amendments shall only be made upon written request to and written
approval by the State. Budget revisions will not be accepted after June 20" of each contract year,

6. The Contractor shall have written authorization from the State
cquipment with a cost in excess of three hundred dollars ($300)
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit C
American Recovery and Reinvestment Act Standard Terms

- Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, the following terms and conditions shall govern
and take precedence over any contlicting provision in this Agreement.

L. ‘The Contractor/Grantee shall obtain a DUNS number (www.dnb.com), and register with the Central
Contractor Registry (CCR, www.ccr.goy). The Contractor/Grantee shall require any subcontractor/subgrantee to

obtain a DUNS number.

The Contractor/Grantee agrees to advertise any sub-contract/sub-grant opportunity arising from this contract/grant
. to be paid for with American Recovery and Reinvestment Act funds on the State of New Hampshire, Department
of Administrative Services “Bidding Opportunities” web site, by completing a bid description form available at:

hitp://www.sunspot.admin.state.nh.us/statecontracting/Documents/bid_form.doc and submitting it to the
Contracting Officer or Grant Manager who will submit the form to purchweb@nh.gov The bid description form
may also be obtained in person from the Otfice of Economic Stimulus at the State House Annex, Room 202-A, 25
Capitol Street, Concord, New Hampshire 03301, by U.S. mail to 107 North Main Street, State House ~ Room 208
Concord, New Hampshire 03301. Requests can be made by phone, (603) 271-2121, or by email,

NHOES(@nh.gov.

2 The Contractor/Grantee, upon entering into any sub-contract/sub-grant to be paid for with American
Recovery and Reinvestment Act funds received through this contract/grant for the purpose of carrying out this
agreement, agrees to provide the Contracting Officer/Grant Manager and the Office of Economic Stimulus
redacted PDF or paper copies of the executed sub-contracts/sub-grants. A copy may be submitted by e-mail to
NHOES@ah.gov or by U.S. Mail to 107 North Main Street, State House — Room 208 Concord, New Hampshire
03301 or by delivery to the Office of Economic Stimulus, State House Annex, Room 202-A, 25 Capitol Street,
Concord, New Hampshire 03301. The copies provided to the State shall have any proprietary or non-public
information, the disclosure of which would constitute an invasion of privacy, redacted. All contracts/grants to

~ individuals and those for amounts of less than $25,000 shall be reported in the aggregate by written narrative in a
manner that protects the privacy interests of any individual recipient. The written narrative shall include the
purpose of the sub-contract(s)/grant(s), the aggregate amount of the sub-contract(s)/grant(s), and an estimate of
the jobs created and the jobs retained by job type, it any, as a result of the sub-contract(s)/grant(s). All
contracts/grants awarded using American Recovery and Reinvestment Act funds will be posted on the NH
Recovery web site and may be posted on the federal Recovery.gov web site.

3 The Contractor/Grantee shall comply, and require any subcontractor/subgrantee to comply with all
. applicable statutes, laws, regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities which shall
impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor/Grantec and subcontractor/subgrantee, including, but not

limited to:

a. The Contractot/Grantee shall comply with, and shall require any subcontractor/subgrantee to
comply with, applicable provisions of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009, Public Law 111-5
(“ARRA”), and applicable federal, rules, orders, regulations and guidelines issued pursuant thereto, as amended

trom time to time, including, but not limited to:

" Section 1512 Reporting:

ARRA imposes transparency, oversight and accountability requirements, including, without limitation, the
. reporting requirements in the Jobs Accountability Act in Section 1512.

Definitions. As used in this Section 1512 reporting clause, the following terms have the meaning set forth below:
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‘ Contract: means a mutually binding legal relationship obligating the seller to furnish the supplies or
services (including construction) and the buyer to pay for them. It includes all types of commitments that obligate
the Government to an expenditure of appropriated funds and that, except as otherwise authorized, are in writing,
[n addition to bilateral instruments, contracts include (but are not limited to) awards and notices of awards; letter
contracts; orders, such as purchase orders, under which the contract becomes effective by written acceptance or
performance; and bilateral contract modifications, grants, and cooperative agreements,

First-tier subcontract: means a subcontract awarded directly by a prime contractor whose contract is
funded by ARRA.

Jobs created: means an estimate of those new positions created and filled, or previously existing unfiiled
positions that are filled, as a result of funding by the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009
(Recovery Act). This definition covers contractor/grantee positions established in the United States and outlying
areas (see definition in FAR 2.101). The number shall be expressed as *“full-time equivalent” (FTE), calculated
cumulatively as all hours worked divided by the total number of hours in a full-time schedule, as defined by the
contractor/grantee. For instance, two full-time employees and one part-time employee working half days would

be reported as 2.5 FTE in each month.

Jobs retained: means an estimate of those previously existing filled positions that are retained as a result
of funding by ARRA. This definition covers contractor positions established in the United States and outlying
areas (see definition in FAR 2,101)., The number shall be expressed as ‘‘full-time equivalent’’ (FTE), calculated
cumulatively as all hours worked divided by the total number of hours in a full-time schedule, as defined by the
contractor. For instance, two full-time employees and one part-time employee working half days would be

reported as 2.5 FTE in each month,

_All jobs created (FTESs) added to all jobs retained (FTEs) should equal the total jobs (FTEs) being paid
for with the ARRA contract/grant funds received pursuant to-this Agreement by the contractor/grantee. Stated
otherwise, all jobs (FTEs) being paid for with funds provided by this agreement minus all jobs created (FTEs)
should equal all jobs retained (FTEs). A job cannot be reported as both created and retained.

Total compensation: means the cash and noncash dollar value earned by the executive during the
contractor’s past fiscal year of the following (for more information see 17 CFR 229.402(c)(2)):

(1) Salary and bonus.
(2) Awards of stock, stock options, and stock appreciation rights. Use the dollar amount recognized for

financial statement reporting purposes with respect to the fiscal year in accordance with the Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (Revised 2004) (FAS 123R), Shared Based Payments.

(3) Earnings for services under non-equity incentive plans. Does not include group life, health,
hospitalization or medical reimbursement plans that do not discriminate in favor of executives, and are
available generally to all salaried employees.

(4) Change in pension value. This is the change in present value of defined benefit and actuarial pension

plans.
(5) Above-market earnings on deferred compensation, which is not tax-qualified.

(6). Other compensation. For example, severance, termination payments, value of life insurance paid on
behalf of the employee, perquisites or property if the value for the executive exceeds $10,000.

The Contractor/Grantee shall provide the data needed for Section 1512 reporting monthly in the format defined by
the Contracting Officer/Grant Manager. The report format may be changed over time if the federal government

issues guidance or establishes requirements for a different format.
Section 1512, at a minimum, requires the following data from the Contractor/Grantee:

(1) An evaluation of the completion status of the project or activity;
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(2) An estimate of the number of jobs created by the project or activity by job type;
(3) An estimate of the number of jobs retained by the project or activity by job type;
(4) Total hours of employees working on the project or activity (subtotal by jobs created and existing

jobs); _
(5) Total wages for employees working on the project or activity (subtotal by jobs created and existing

 jobs); | |
(6) For infrastructure investments made by State and local governments, the purpose, total cost, and
rationale of the agency for funding the infrastructure investment with funds made available under this
Act, and name of the person to contact at the agency if there are concerns with the infrastructure

investment; and
(7) Detailed information on any subcontracts or subgrants awarded by the recipient to include the data

clements required to comply with the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act of 2006
(Public Law 109-282), allowing aggregate reporting on awards below $25,000 or to individuals, as
prescribed by the Director of the Office of Management and Budget.

The Contractor/Grantee agrees to provide the following data required by the Federal Funding Accountability and
Transparency Act, 31 U.S.C. 6101, for both the contractor/grantee and any subcontractor(s)/subgrantee(s):

(1) The name of the entity receiving the award (must match the name used for establishing the entity’s
DUNS number and Contractor Central Registry);

(2) The amount of the award,;
(3) Information on the award including transaction type, funding agency, the North American Industry

Classification System code or Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance Number (where applicable),
program source, and an award title descriptive of the purpose of each funding action;
(4) The location of the entity receiving the award and the primary location of performance under the

. award, including the city State, congressional district, and county;
(5) The DUNS number and Central Contractor Registry numbers of the entity receiving the award and of
the parent entity of the recipient, should the entity be owned by another entity; and
(6) Any other relevant information specified by the Office of Management and Budget (“OMB”).

Currently no further information is being required by OMB.

This contract requires the Contractor/Grantee to provide products and/or services that are funded under the
American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (Recovery Act). Section 1512(c) of the Recovery Act
requires each contractor to report on its use of Recovery Act funds under this contract. These reports will be made

available to the public.

Reports from contractors for all work funded, in whole or in part, by the Recovery Act, and for which an invoice
is submitted prior to the last day of each month, are due no later than the fifth day of each month.

The Contractor/Grantee shall report the following additional information, to the contracting officer or grant
manager identified in this contract/grant in an Excel spreadsheet or paper report in the form provided by the State.
The State agrees to provide the Contractor/Grantee with a report form that has pre-filled the data elements known

to the State:
(1) The Government contract and order number, as applicable;

(2) The amount of Recovery Act funds invoiced by the contractor for the reporting period. A cumulative
amount trom all the reports submitted for this action will be maintained by the state;

(3) A list of all significant services performed or supplies delivered, including construction, for which the
contractor invoiced in this calendar month;

(4) Program or project title, if any;
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(5) A description of the overall purpose and expected outcomes or results of the contract, including
significant deliverables and, if appropriate, associated units of measure;

(6) An assessment of the contractor’s/grantee’s progress towards the completion of the overall purpose
and expected outcomes or results of the contract/grant (i.e., not started, less than 50 percent completed,
completed 50 percent or more, or fully completed). This covers the contract/grant (or portion thereof)

funded by the Recovery Act;

(7) A narrative description of the employment impact of work funded by the Recovery Act. This
narrative should be cumulative for each calendar month and only address the impact on the contractor’s
workforce. At a minimum, the contractor shall provide;
(i) A brief description of the types of jobs created and jobs retained in the United States and
outlying areas (see detinition in FAR 2.101), This description may rely on job titles, broader
labor categories, or the contractor’s existing practice for describing jobs as long as the terms used
are widely understood and describe the general nature of the work; and
(ii) An estimate of the number of jobs created by job type and a separate estimate of the number
of jobs retained by job type, by the contractor/grantee and separately by any
subcontractor(s)/subgrantee(s), in the United States and outlying areas. A job cannot be reported

as both created and retained.

(8) If the Contractor/Grantee meets the criteria set forth below, the names and total compensation of each
of the five most highly compensated otficers of the Contractor for the calendar year in which the contract
is awarded. This requirement appiies only if?
(i) In the Contractor’s/Grantee’s preceding fiscal year, the Contractor/Grantee received—
{(A) 80 percent or more of its annual gross revenues from Federal contracts {and
subcontracts), loans, grants (and subgrants) and cooperative agreements; and
(B} $25,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues from Federal contracts {and
subcontracts), loans, grants (and subgrants) and cooperative agreements; and
(ii) The public does not have access to information about the compensation of the senior
executives through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986.

(9) For subcontracts/subgrants valued at less than $25,000 or any subcontracts/subgrants awarded to an
individual, or subcontracts/subgrants awarded to a subcontractor/subgrantee that in the previous tax year
had gross income under $300,000, the Contractor shall only report the aggregate number of such first tier
subcontracts/subgrants awarded in the month and their aggregate total dollar amount.

{10) For any first-tier subcontract/subgrant funded in whole or in part under the Recovery Act, that is
over $25,000 and not subject to reporting under paragraph 9, the contractor shall require the
subcontractor/subgrantee to provide the information described in (1), (ix), (x), and (xi) below to the
contractor for the purposes of the monthly report. The contractor shall advise the subcontractor that the
information will be made available to the public as required by section 1512 of the Recovery Act. The
contractor shall provide detailed information on these first-tier subcontracts as follows:

(i} Unique identifier (DUNS Number) for the subcontractor/subgrantee receiving the award and
for the subcontractor’s/subgrantee’s parent company, if the subcontractor/subgrantee has a parent

~ company;
~ (ii) Name df_ the subcontractor/subgrantee;

(iii) Amount of the subcontract/subgrant award:
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(iv) Date of the subcontract/subgrant award;

{v) The épp!icable North American Industry Classification System (NAICS) code;

(vi) Funding agency;

(vil) A description of the products or services (including construction) being provided under the
subcontract/subgrant, including the overall purpose and expected outcomes or results of the

subcontract/subgrant;

(viii) Subcontract/subgrant number (the contract number assigned by the prime contractor);

(ix) Subcontractor’s/subgrantee’s physical address including street address, city, state, and
country. Also include the nine-digit zip code and congressional district if applicable;

(x) Subcontract/subgrant primary performance location including street address, city, state, and
country. Also include the nine-digit zip code and congressional district if applicable;

(xi) If the Contractor/Grantee meets the criteria set forth below, the names and total
compensation of each of the subcontractor’s five most highly compensated officers, for the
calendar year in which the subcontract is awarded. This requirement applies only if;

(A) In the subcontractor’s/subgrantee’s preceding fiscal year, the
subcontractor/subgrantee received:

(1) 80 percent or more of its annual gross revenues in Federal contracts (and
subcontracts), loans, grants (and subgrants), and cooperative agreements; and

(2) $25,000,000 or more int annual gross revenues from Federal contracts (and
subcontracts), loans, grants (and subgrants), and cooperative agreements; and

(B) The public does Inot have access to information about the compensation of the senior
executives through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal

Revenue Code of 1986;

(11) The contractor/grantee shall require the subcontractor/sub-grantee to register with the
federal government Central Contractor Registration (CCR) database at WWW.CCT.ZovV.

[nspection:

The Contractor/Grantee agrees that the Comptrollef General of the United States, an appropriate Inspector
General appointed under section 3 or 8G of the Inspector General Act of 1978 (5 U.S.C. App.), or an authorized
representative of either of the foregoing officials, or of the State of New Hampshire shall have access to and the

right to:

(1) Examine any of the Contractor’s/Grantee’s or any subcontractor’s/subgrantee’s records that pertain to
and involve transactions relating to this contract/grant or a subcontract/subgrant hereunder; and

(2) Interview any officer or employee regarding such transactions. The Contractor/Grantee shall insert a
clause containing all the terms of this section, including this paragraph, in all subcontracts under this
contract. The clause may be altered only as necessary to identify properly the contracting parties and the
Contracting Officer/Grant Manager under the Government prime contract.
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Whistleblower Protection Notice:

ARRA Section 1553 establishes whistleblower protections that apply to the contractor/grantee, and any sub-
contractor/subgrantee pursuant to this agreement. The Contractor shall post notice of employees rights and
remedies for whistleblower protections provided under section 1553 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment
Act 0t 2009 (Pub. L. 111-5). The Contractor shall include the substance of this clause including this paragraph in
. all subcontracts. The posted notice required by this clause shall include contact information to report traud,

waste, or abuse to the Inspector General of the federal department that is the source of the ARRA funds for this
contract/grant, fraud to the New Hampshire Attorney General’s Office Criminal Bureau, and waste or abuse to the
Office of Economic Stimulus. A notice for this purpose is available at http.//www.nh.gov/recovery/,

4, The Contractor/Grantee agrees to comply with the Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008

requirements (as amended in Section 1608 of the Recovery Act), 12 U.S.C. 5217(b), which provide for the

inclusion and utilization, to the maximum extent practicable, of minorities (as such term is defined in section

~ 1204(c) of the Financial Institutions Reform, Recovery, and Enforcement Act of 1989 (12 U.8.C. 1811 note)) and
women, and minority- and women-owned businesses (as such terms are defined in 12 U.S,C.1441a(r)(4) of this

title), and individuals with disabilities and businesses owned by individuals with disabilities;

5. The Contractor/Grantee agrees to comply with the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (P.L. 91-
190) requirements in Section 1609, including requirements for plans and projects to be reviewed and documented
in accordance with those processes; and Executive Order 11514; notification of violating facilities pursuant to
Executive Order 11738; protection of wetlands pursuant to Executive Order 11990 and State law; evaluation of
flood hazards in floodplains in accordance with Executive Order 11988; assurance of project consistency with the
" approved State management program developed under the Coastal Zone Management Act of 1972 (16 U.S8.C.
§§1451 et seq.); conformity of Federal Actions to State (Clean Air) Implementation Plans under Section 176(c) of
the Clean Air Act of 1955, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§7401 et seq.); protection of underground sources of drinking
water under the Sate Drinking Water Act of 1974, as amended (P.L. 93-523); and protection of endangered
species under the Endangered Species Act of 1973, as amended (P.L. 93-205);

6. The Contractor/Grantee agrees to comply with all anti-discrimination and equal opportunity statutes,
regulations, and Executive Orders that apply to the expenditure of funds under Federal contracts, grants,
- cooperative agreements, loans, and other forms of Federal assistance, and all State and federal anti-discrimination
statutes including but not limited to: Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964,which prohibits discrimination on
the basis of race, color, or national origin; Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, (20 U.S.C. §§ 1681-
1683 and 1685-1686), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex; Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of
1973 as amended (29 U.S.C. §794), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of handicaps; the Age
Discrimination Act of 1975 as amended (42 U.S.C. §§6101-6107), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of
age; the Drug Abuse Office and Treatment Act of 1972 (P.L.92-255), as amended, relating to nondiscrimination
on the basis of drug abuse; the Comprehensive Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism Prevention, Treatment and
. Rehabilitation Act of 1970 (P.L. 616), as amended, relating to nondiscrimination on the basis of alcohol abuse or
alcoholism; §§523 and 527 of the Public Health Service Act of 1912 (42 U.S.C. §§ 290 dd-3 and 290 ee-3), as
- amended, relating to confidentiality of alcohol and drug abuse patient records; Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act
of 1968 (42 U.S8.C. §§3601 et. seq.), as amended, relating to nondiscrimination in the sale, rental or financing of
housing; Executive Order 11246; any other nondiscrimination provisions in ARRA, and any program-specific
statutes with anti-discrimination requirements; as well as generally applicable civil rights laws including, but not
limited to, the Fair Credit Reporting Act, [5 U.S.C. § 1681 ¢f seq.; the Americans With Disabilities Act, 42
U.S.C. §§ 12101 er seq.; Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. 2000¢ e¢ seq., relating to
employment rights and preventing employment discrimination; the Equal Educational Opportunities Act, 20
- U.S.C. § 1703, prohibiting denial of an equal educational opportunity to an individual on account of his or her
race, color, sex, or national origin; the Age Discrimination in Employment Act, 29 U.S.C. § 634, prohibing age
discrimination against persons 40 years of age or older; the Uniform Relocation Act, 42 U.S.C.A. § 4601 et seq.,
establishing uniform policies to compensate people displaced from their homes or businesses by state and local
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government programs; and New Hampshire Revised Statutes Annotated Chapter 354-A, prohibiting certain
discrimination in employment, in places of public accommodation and in housing accommodations.

- 7. The Contractor/Grantee agrees to comply with 40 U.S.C. §§ 3701, et seq., Contract Work Hours and
Safety Standards Act; 41 U.S.C. §§ 51-58, Anti-Kickback Act of 1986; 41 U.S.C. § 265 and 10 U.S.C. § 2409
relating to whistleblower protections; the Hatch Act, 5 U.S.C. §§1501-1508 and 7324-7328, which limits the
political activities of employees whose principal employment activities are funded in whole or in part with

- Federal funds; and the [.ead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act (42 U.8.C. §§401 er seq.), which prohibits the
use of lead-based paint in construction or rehabilitation of residence structures.

8. The Contractor/Grantee agrees to comply with 31 U.S.C. § 1352, relating to limitations on the use of
. appropriated funds to influence certain Federal contracts and New Hampshire Revised Statute Annotated 15:5
which prohibits to use of funds appropriated or granted by the State for lobbying or electioneering.

Limitations on the use of federal Grant or Contract Funds for Lobbying;

a, The law prohibits Federal funds from being expended by the recipient or any lower tier sub-recipients of a

Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement to pay any person for influencing or attempting to

intfluence a Federal agency or Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of

. any Federal grant or loan, or the entering into of any cooperative agreement. The extension, continuation,
renewal, amendment or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement is also

covered.

b. Federal-aid contractors, consultants, and grant recipients as well as lower tier subcontractors,
subconsultants, and grant sub-recipients are also subject to the lobbying prohibition.

C. To assure compliance, for any contract or grant, including any sub-contract or grant exceeding $100,000
the contractor/grantee and sub-contractor/sub-grantee must submit and update as required a “Disclosure of

~ Lobbying Activities” form, (OMB Standard Form LLL), available at .
http://www.nh.gov/recovery/library/index.htm.

1. During the grant or contract period, contractors/grantees and sub-contractors/sub-grantees must
lile disclosure form (Standard Form LLL) at the end of each calendar year in which there occurs any event that
requires disclosure or that materially affects the accuracy of the information contained in any previously filed
disclosure form.
2. Lower tier certifications should be maintained by the next tier above (i.e. prime

+ contractors/grantees will keep the subcontractors/subgrantee’s certification on file, etc. )
3. Standard Form LLL will be provided during contract execution for utilization during the

required contract period.

Funds appropriated under the ARRA can, under certain circumstances, be used for grants to nonprofit
organizations. However, grants cannot be awarded to a nonprofit organization classified by the Internal Revenue
Service as a 501(c)(4) organization unless that organization certifies that it will not engage in lobbying activities,
even with their own funds (see Section 18 of the Lobbying Disclosure Act, 2 U.S.C.A § 1611).

9. The Contractor/Grantee agrees to comply with The National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as
amended (16 U.S.C. §470), Executive Order 11593 (identification and protection of historic properties) and the
Archaeological and Historic Preservation Act of 1974 (16 U.S.C. §8469a-1 et. seq.); and related statutes,
including requirements for plans and projects to be reviewed and documented in accordance with those processes.

10, The Contractor/Grantee, and any subcontractor/subgrantee, shall immediately refer to an appropriate
inspector general within the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Office of the Inspector General,
and to the Public Integrity Unit of the New Hampshire Attorney General’s Office (603) 271-3671, any credible
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evidence that a principal, employee, agent, contractor, sub-grantee, subcontractor or subgrantee, or other person
has submitted a false claim under the False Claims Act or has committed a criminal or civil violation of laws’
pertaining to fraud, conflict of interest, bribery, gratuity, or similar misconduct involving those funds.

The Contractor/Grantee, and any subcontractor/subgrantee agree to maintain at each worksite and location of
work funded by this Agreement a poster describing how to report fraud, waste, or abuse of ARRA funds. A
. model poster for this purpose, which also incorporates the whistleblower notice requirements, is available at

httpi//www nh.gov/recovery/.

ir. Any funding provided to the Contractor/Grantee pursuant to the Recovery Act that is supplemental to an
existing grant is one-time funding. :

12. The Recovery Act funds are not eligible for costs incurred prior to the date of obligation,

13, The Contractor/Grantee agrees that in compliance with ARRA section 1604 none of the funds
appropriated or otherwise made available in this Act may be used by any State or local government, or any private
entity, for any casino or other gambling establishment, aquarium, zoo, goif course, or swimming pool.

14, The Contractor/Grantee agrees to establish and maintain a proper accounting system in accordance with
generally accepted accounting standards.

To maximize the transparency and accountability of funds authorized under ARRA as required by Congress and
in accordance with 2 CFR 215, subpart . 21 “Uniform Administrative Requirements for Grants and
" Agreements” and OMB A-102 Common Rules provisions, the Contractor/Grantee agree to maintain records that

identify adequately the source and application of Recovery Act funds.

For recipients covered by the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and OMB Circular A-133, “Audits of States,
Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations,” recipients agree to separately identify the expenditures for
Federal awards under the Recovery Act on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (SEFA) and the Data
Collection Form (SF-SAC) required by OMB Circular A-133. This shall be accomplished by identifying
expenditures for Federal awards made under Recovery Act separately on the SEFA, and as separate rows under

- [tem 9 of Part III on the SF-SAC by CFDA number, and inclusion of the prefix “ARRA-" in identifying the name
of the Federal program on the SEFA and as the first characters in Item 9d of Part III on the SF-SAC,

Recipients agree to separately identify to each sub-recipient, and document at the time of sub-award and at the
time of disbursement of funds, the Federal award number, CFDA number, and amount of Recovery Act funds.
When a recipient awards Recovery Act funds for an existing program, the information furnished to sub-recipients
shall distinguish the sub-awards of incremental Recovery Act funds from regular sub-awards under the existing

program.
Recipients agree to require their sub-recipients to include on their SEFA information to specifically identify
Recovery Act funding similar to the requirements for the recipient SEFA described above, This information is

needed to allow the recipient to properly monitor sub-recipient expenditure of ARRA funds as well as oversight
by the Federal awarding agencies, Offices of Inspector General, the Government Accountability Office, and the

State of New Hampshire.

Where applicable, Recipients will cause to be performed the required financial and compliance audits in

‘ accordance with the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and OMB Circular No. A-133, “Audits of States,
Local Gpvernments, and Non-Profit Organizations.”

15, Debarment. The Contractor/Grantee by signing this Agreement certifies that the Contractor/Grantee,
including all principals, is not currently under debarment or suspension and has not been under debarment or
suspension within the past three years, as required by 49 CFR 29.510. The Contractor/Grantee agrees to notify
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the Contracting Officer/Grant Manager within 30 days of being debarred or suspended from federal government

" contracts.

The Contractor/Grantee certifies by entering into this contract that it has the institutional, managerial, and

16.
gement, and completion of the project described in this

financial capability to ensure proper planning, mana
Agreement.

17. The Contractor/Grantee agrees to comply with the prohibitions on the giving of gifts to public officials

established by RSA chapter 15-B.

[8. The Contractor/Grantee agrees to post any job openings resulting from this contract/grant on the
Department of Employment Security NHWorks Job Match System, available at

littps.//nhworksjobmatch.nhes.nh. gov/.

19. The Contractor/Grantee shall cause the provisions of this Exhibit C of the General Provisions to be
inserted in all subcontracts for any work or project activities covered by this Agreement so that the provisions will
be binding on each subcontractor or subgrantee. The Contractor/Grantee shall take such action with respect to

- any subcontract as the State, or, the United States, may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, including

without limitation, sanctions for noncompliance.
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'l‘ERMS APPLYING ONLY TO SPECIFIC CONTRACTS/GRANTS

The following Use It or Lose It ~ Report It or Lose [t provision should be used where the State has authority to
withdraw funds if the contractor/grantee fails to perform on time or fails to file required reports. Where the Stute
is vbligated by federal or State law to provide the fiinds being awarded or granted, omit this provision.
Contracting Officers may exercise discretion and omit the provision where the nature of the goods or services
being acquired and the nature of the contractor/grantee makes the provision inappropriate or unnecessary.
Questions regarding use or omission of the provision should be discussed with the Assistant Attorney General
Assigned to your Depariment and/or the Business Supervisor from the Department of Admzm strative Services

ussigned to your Department,

Use It or Lose It and Report [t or Lose It Requirement. This contract/grant is being funded by funds received by
the State of New Hampshire pursuant to ARRA. Federal law provides in part that in using funds made available
under ARRA for infrastructure investment, recipients shall give preference to activities that can be started and
completed expeditiously, including a goal of using at least 50 percent of the funds for activities that can be
initiated not [ater than 120 days after the date of the enactment of ARRA. Federal guidance also directs that all
ARRA funds be put to work in the community promptly. Recipients shall also use grant funds in a manner that
maximizes job creation and economic benefit. ARRA imposes enhanced levels of' accountability and

transparency.

Therefore, prompt and accountable performance of this contract/grant is OF THE ESSENCE. Thus, for ail
obligations of the contractor/grantee, time is of the essence. In addition to the clauses set forth in the standard
form P-37, the State reserves the right to terminate this contract/grant and to award a new contract/grant to a new
contractor/grantee for any unearned portion of the contract price if the contractor/grantee fails to perform
according to the timeline promised, fails to comply with accountability requirements in this Agreement and

ARRA, or fails to file monthly reports on time.
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The following Buy American contract term shall be included in any contract or grant where the ARRA funds .
being awarded by contract or grant that will or may be used for a project for the construction, alteration,
maintenance, or repair of a public building or public work. Contracting Officers and Grant Managers must

: ct to any other federal “Buy American™ or “Buy America’ laws, The

determine if the project/grant is subje
Contract Manager or Grant Manager shall substitute the federally-mandated contract term for this term where

the federal agency providing ARRA funds has provided specific language regarding that federal program’s “Buy
America” or "Buy American” requirements. To the extent the responsible federal Secretary has waived the
application of “‘Buy American” or “Buy America’ requirements for specified iron, steel, or manufactured goods,
u list of pertinent waived items should be incorporated into the contract. Consult with the Assistant Attorney
General assigned to your Department and/or the Business Supervisor from the Department of Administrative

Services assigned to your Department for assistance if needed,

Buy American:

Buy American requirements in Section 1605 of ARRA. Unless
this requirement has been waived by a competent federal authority pursuant to 2 CFR 176.140, none of the funds
appropriated or otherwise made available by the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act may be used for a
project for the construction, alteration, maintenance, or repair of a public building or public work unless all of the
iron, steel, and manufactured goods used in the project are produced in the United States. When using funds
appropriated under the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (Pub. L, 111-5), the definition of

“+domestic manufactured construction material’’ requires manufacture in the United States but does not include a

requirement with regard to the origin of the components. Production in the United States of the iron or steel used
es must take place in the United States, except

as construction material requires that all manufacturing process
metallurgical processes involving refinement of steel additives. These requirements do not apply to steel or iron

used as components or subcomponents of other manufactured construction material. There is no requirement with
regard to the origin of components or subcomponents in other manufactured construction material, as long as the

manufacture of the construction material occurs in the United States.

. The Contractot/Grantee agrees to comply with the

As used in this “Buy American” term and condition:

(1) Manufactured good means a good brought to the construction site for incorporation into the building
or work that has been:

(i) Processed into a specific form and shape; or

(ii) Combined with other raw material to create a material that has different properties than the
properties of the individual raw materials.

(2) Public building and public work means a public building of, and a public work of, a governmental
entity (the United States; the District of Columbia; commonwealths, territories, and minor outlying
islands of the United States; State and local governments; and multi-State, regional, or interstate entities
which have governmental functions). These buildings and works may include, without limitation,
bridges, dams, plants, highways, parkways, streets, subways, tunnels, sewers, mains, power lines,
pumping stations, heavy generators, railways, airports, terminais, docks, piers, wharves, ways,
lighthouses, buoys, jetties, breakwaters, levees, and canals, and the construction, alteration, maintenance,

or repair of such buildings and works.

(3) Steel means an alloy that includes at least 50 percent iron, between .02 and 2 percent carbon, and may
include other elements.
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A federal law, commonly known as the “Buy American Act,” 41 U.S.C.A. § 10A-10D, exists as a separate and
additional legal limitation on the use of ARRA federal funds. The Contractor/Grantee agrees to use only
domestic unmanufactured construction material, as required by the Buy American Act.

The Contractor/Grantee acknowledges to and for the benefit of the State of New Hampshire that it understands the
goods and services under this Agreement are being funded with monies made available by ARRA and such law
contains provisions commonly known as “*Buy American;” that requires all of the iron, steel, and manufactured
goods used in the project be produced in the Unites States (“Buy American Requirements™) including iron, steel,
and manufactured goods provided by the Contractor pursuant to this Agreement. The Contractor/Grantee hereby
represents and warrants to and for the benefit of the State that (a) the Contractor/Grantee has reviewed and
understands the Buy American Requirements, (b) all of the iron, steel, and manufactured goods used in the project
funded by this agreement will be and/or have been produced in the United States in 2 manner that complies with
the Buy American Requirements, unless a waiver of the requirements has been approved by federal authorities,
and (c) the Contractor/Grantee will provide any further verified information, certification or assurance of
compliance with this paragraph, or information necessary to support a waiver of the Buy American Requirements,
as may be requested by the State. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Agreement, any failure to comply
with this paragraph by the Contractor/Grantee shall permit the State to recover as damages against the
Contractor/Grantee any loss, expense or cost (including without limitation attorney’s fees) incurred by the State
resulting from any such failure (including without limitation any impairment or loss of funding, whether in whole

or in part, from the State or any damages owed to the State).

The Contractor (or the Grantee with any contract issued pursuant to the grant agrees to require a certification from
the Contractor) agrees to certify compliance with a certification in the following form:

L. Identification of American-made Iron, Steel, and Manufactured Goods: Consistent with the terms of the-
bid solicitation and the provisions of ARRA Section 1605, the Contractor certifies that the bid on which
this contract is based reflects the Contractor’s best, good faith effort to identify domestic sources of iron,

" steel, and manufactured goods for every component contained in the bid solicitation where such
American-made components are available on the schedule and consistent with the deadlines prescribed in
or required by the bid solicitation. e

2. Verification of U.S. Production: The Contractor certifies that all components contained in the bid
solicitation that are American-made have been so identified, and the Contractor agrees that it will provide
reasonable, sufficient, and timely verification to the State of the U.S. production of each component so

identified.
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The following Prevailing Wage Provision is applicable to wages for labors and mechanics for any contract in

* excess of $2,000 which is entered into Jor the actual construction, alteration and/or repair, including painting and
decorating, of a public huilding or public work, or building or work financed in whole or in part from ARRA
Sunds. Section 1606 of ARRA in effect applies the Davis-Bacon prevailing wage law and related federal laws to
projects finded directly by or assisted in whole or in part by and through the Federal Government pursuant to
ARRA. If there is any uncertainty regarding the applicability of this term, the C ontracting Officer or Grant
Munager shall consult with the Assistant Attorney General assi gned to his/her department,

This law and the guidance on its implementation issued by OMB contemplate that the government agency will

' identify the pertinent wage determinations made by the Jederal department of labor and incorporate them into the
contract. Determinations are county specific, and-job specific. It may be necessary to obtain wage
determinations if one has not been published for Jobs to be created by the contract, For further information see:

http:fwww.gpo. gov/davisbacon/referencemat. himi

. Prevailing Wage Requirements:

- The Contractor/Grantee agreesto comply with the Wage Rate Requirements in Section 1606 of ARRA. In
accordance with 2 C.F.R. §176.190, the standard Davis-Bacon contract clause as specified by 29 CFR §5.5(a) is

set forth below:
29 CFR §5.5(a):
§ 5.5 Contract provisions and related matters,

. (a) The Agency head shall cause or require the contracting officer to insert in full in any contract in excess of
$2,000 which is entered into for the actual construction, alteration and/or repair, including painting and
decorating, of a public building or public work, or building or work financed in whole or in part from Federal
funds or in accordance with guarantees of a Federal agency or financed from funds obtained by pledge of any
contract of a Federal agency to make a loan, grant or annual contribution (except where a different meaning is
expressly indicated), and which is subject to the labor standards provisions of any of the acts listed in § 5.1, the
following clauses (or any modifications thereof to meet the particular needs of the agency, Provided, that such

modifications are first approved by the Department of Labor):

- (1) Minimum wages.

(i) All laborers and mechanics employed or working upon the site of the work (or under the United States
Housing Act of 1937 or under the Housing Act of 1949 in the construction or development of the project), will be
paid unconditionally and not less often than once a week, and without subsequent deduction or rebate on any
account (except such payroil deductions as are permitted by regulations issued by the Secretary of Labor under
the Copeland Act (29 CFR part 3) ), the full amount of wages and bona tide fringe benefits (or cash equivalents
thereot) due at time of payment computed at rates not less than those contained in the wage determination of the

- Secretary of Labor which is attached hereto and made a part hereof, regardless of any contractual relationship
which may be alleged to exist between the contractor and such laborers and mechanics.

Contributions made or costs reasonably anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits under section 1(b)(2) of the
Davis-Bacon Act on behalf of laborers or mechanics are considered wages paid to such laborers or mechanics,
subject to the provisions of paragraph (a)(1)(iv) of this section; also, regular contributions made or costs incurred
for more than a weekly period (but not less often than quarterly) under plans, funds, or programs which cover the
particular weekly period, are deemed to be constructively made or incurred during such weekly period. Such

. laborers and mechanics shall be paid the appropriate wage rate and fringe benefits on the wage determination for

the classification of work actually performed, without regard to skill, except as provided in § 5 .5(a)(4). Laborers

or mechanics performing work in more than one classification may be compensated at the rate specified for each
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classitication for the time actually worked therein: Provided, That the employer's payroll records accurately set
forth the time spent in each classification in which work is performed, The wage determination (including any
additional classification and wage rates conformed under paragraph (a)(1)(ii) of this section) and the Davis-Bacon
poster (WH-1321) shail be posted at all times by the contractor and its subcontractors at the site of the work in a

- prominent and accessible place where the poster and wage determination can be easily seen by the workers.

(ii}(A) The contracting officer shall require that any class of laborers or mecharucs, including helpers, which is
not listed in the wage determination and which is to be employed under the contract, shall be classitied in
conformance with the wage determination. 'The contracting officer shall approve an additional classxhcatlon and
wage rate and fringe benefits therefore only when the following criteria have been met:

(1) The work to be performed by the classification requested is not performed by a classification in the wage
. determination; and

{2) The classification is utilized in the area by the construction industry; and

(3) The proposed wage rate, including any bona fide fringe benefits, bears a reasonable relauonshlp to the wage
rates contained in the wage determination,

(B) If the contractor and the Iaborers and mechanics to be employed in the classification (if known), or their
representatives, and the contracting otficer agree on the classification and wage rate (including the amount

* designated for fringe benefits where appropriate), a report of the action taken shall be sent by the contracting
otficer to the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division, Employment Standards Administration, U.S.
Department of Labor, Washington, DC 20210. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will approve,
modify, or disapprove every additional classification action within 30 days of receipt and so advise the
contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary.

(C) In the event the contractor, the laborers or mechanics to be employed in the classification or their
representatives, and the contracting officer do not agree on the proposed classification and wage rate (including
* the amount demgnated for fringe benefits, where appropriate), the contracting officer shall refer the questions,
including the views of all interested parties and the recommendation of the contracting officer, to the
" Administrator for determination. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will issue a determination
within 30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 30-

day period that additional time is necessary.

(D) The wage rate (including fringe benefits where appropriate) determined pursuant to paragraphs (a){1)(i))(B) or
(C) of this section, shall be paid to all workers performing work in the classxﬁcatlon under this contract from the

. first day on which work is performed in the classification.

(iii) Whenever the minimum wage rate prescribed in the contract for a class of laborers or mechanics includes a
fringe benefit which is not expressed as an hourly rate, the contractor shail either pay the benefit as stated in the
wage determination or shall pay another bona fide fringe benefit or an hourly cash equivalent thereof.

(iv} If the contractor does not make payments to a trustee or other third person, the contractor may consider as

part of the wages of any laborer or mechanic the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing bona

_ fide fringe benefits under a plan or program, Provided, That the Secretary of Labor has found, upon the written
request of the contractor, that the applicable standards of the Davis-Bacon Act have been met. The Secretary of

Labor may require the contractor to set aside in a separate account assets for the meeting of obligations under the

plan or program.

(2) Withholding. The New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services (NH DHHS) shall upon its own
action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be
withheld from the contractor under this contract or any other State contract with the same prime contractor, or any
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other federally-assisted contract subject to Davis-Bacon prevailing wage requirements, which is held by the same
prime coniractor, so much of the accrued payments or advances as may be considered necessary to pay laborers
and mechanics, inciuding apprentices, trainees, and helpers, employed by the contractor or any subcontractor the
full amount of wages required by the contract. In the event of failure to pay any laborer or mechanic, including
any apprentice, trainee, or helper, employed or working on the site of the work (or under the United States
Housing Act of 1937 or under the Housing Act of 1949 in the construction or development of the project), all or
part of the wages required by the contract, the (Agency) may, after written notice to the contractor, sponsor,
applicant, or owner, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment,

advance, or guarantee of funds until such violations have ceased.

(3) Payrolls and basic records.

(i) Payrolls and basic records relating thereto shall be maintained by the contractor during the course of the work
and preserved for a period of three years thereafter for all laborers and mechanics working at the site of the work
(or under the United States Housing Act of 1937, or under the Housing Act of 1949, in the construction or
development of the project). Such records shall contain the name, address, and social security number of each

" such worker, his or her correct classification, hourly rates of wages paid (including rates of contributions or costs
anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits or cash equivalents thereof of the types described in section 1(b)(2)(B) of
the Davis-Bacon Act), daily and weekly number of hours worked, deductions made and actual wages paid.
Whenever the Secretary of Labor has found under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(iv) that the wages of any laborer or mechanic
include the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing benefits under a plan or program described in
section 1(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act, the contractor shall maintain records which show that the commitment
to provide such benefits is enforceable, that the plan or program is financially responsible, and that the plan or
program has been communicated in writing to the laborers or mechanics affected, and records which show the

- costs anticipated or the actual cost incurred in providing such benefits. Contractors employing apprentices or
trainees under approved programs shatl maintain written evidence of the registration of apprenticeship programs
and certification of trainee programs, the registration of the apprentices and trainees, and the ratios and wage rates

prescribed in the applicable programs.

(ii)(A) The contractor shall submit weekly for each week in which any contract work is performed a copy of all
payrolls to the NH DHHS if the agency is a party to the contract, but if the agency is not such a party, the
" contractor will submit the payrolls to the applicant, sponsor, or owner, as the case may be, for transmission to the
. NH DHHS. The payrolls submitted shall set out accurately and completely all of the information required to be
. maintained under 29 CFR 5.5(a)}(3)(i), except that full social security numbers and home addresses shall not be
included on weekly transmittals. Instead the payrolls shail only need to include an individuaily identifying
number for each employee (e.g., the last four digits of the employee's social security number). The required
weekly payroll information may be submitted in any form desired. Optional Form WH-347 is available for this
purpose from the Wage and Hour Division Web site at http://www.dol.gov/esa/whd/forms/wh347instr.htm or its
successor site. The prime contractor is responsible for the submission of copies of payrolls by all subcontractors.
Contractors and subcontractors shall maintain the full social security number and current address of each covered
~ worker, and shall provide them upon request to the NH DHHS if the agency is a party to the contract, but if the
ageney is not such a party, the contractor will submit them to the applicant, sponsor, or owner, as the case may be,
for transmission to the NH DHHS, the contractor, or the Wage and Hour Division of the Department of Labor for
purposes of an investigation or audit of compliance with prevailing wage requirements. [t is not a violation of this
section for a prime contractor to require a subcontractor to provide addresses and social security numbers to the
prime contractor for its own records, without weekly submission to the sponsoring government agency. (or the

applicant, sponsor, or owner).

(B) Each payroll submitted shall be accompanied by a “Statement of Compliance,” signed by the contractor or
* subcontractor or his or her agent who pays or supervises the payment of the persons employed under the contract

and shall certify the following:

(1) That the payroli for the payroll period contains the information required to be provided under § 5.5 (a)(3)(ii)
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ot Regulations, 29 CFR part 5, the appropriate information is being maintained under § 5.5 (a)(3)(i) of
~ Regulations, 29 CFR part 3, and that such information is correct and complete; T

(2) That each laborer or mechanic (including each helper, apprentice, and trainee) employed on the contract
during the payroll period has been paid the full weekly wages earned, without rebate, cither directly or indirectly,
and that no deductions have been made either directly or indirectly from the fuil wages earned, other than

permissible deductions as set forth in Regulations, 29 CFR part 3;

(3) That each laborer or mechanic has been paid not less than the applicable wage rates and fringe benefits or cash
equivalents for the classification of work performed, as specitied in the applicable wage determination

" incorporated into the contract. '

(C) The weekly submission of a properly executed certification set forth on the reverse side of Optional Form
WH-347 shall satisfy the requirement for submission of the “Statement of Compliance” required by paragraph

(a)(3)(ii)(B) of this section.

(D) The falsification of any of the above certifications may subject the contractor or subcontractor to civil or
criminal prosecution under section 1001 of title 18 and section 231 of title 31 of the United States Code or New
- Hampshire Revised Statutes Annotated Chapter 641.

(iti) The Contractor or subcontractor shall make the records required under paragraph (2)(3)(i) of this section
‘available for inspection, copying, or transcription by authorized representatives of the State of New Hampshire or
the federal Department of Labor, and shall permit such representatives to interview employees during working
hours on the job. If the contractor or subcontractor fails to submit the required records or to make them available,
the government agency may, after written notice to the contractor, sponsor, applicant, or owner, take such action
as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds.

. Furthermore, failure to submit the required records upon request or to make such records available may be

grounds for debarment action pursuant to 29 CFR 5.12.

(4) Apprentices and trainees--

(i) Apprentices. Apprentices will be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work they
performed when they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in a bona fide apprenticeship program
registered with the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration, Office of
Apprenticeship Training, Employer and Labor Services, or with a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the
* Office, or if a person is employed in his or her first 90 days of probationary employment as an apprentice in such
an apprenticeship program, who is not individually registered in the program, but who has been certified by the
Otfice of Apprenticeship Training, Employer and Labor Services or a State Apprenticeship Agency (where
appropriate) to be eligible for probationary employment as an apprentice. The allowable ratio of apprentices to
journeymen on the job site in any craft classification shail not be greater than the ratio permitted to the contractor
as to the entire work force under the registered program, Any worker listed on a payroll at an apprentice wage
rate, who is not registered or otherwise employed as stated above, shall be paid not less than the applicable wage
rate on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed. In addition, any apprentice
- performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less
than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed. Where a contractor is
performing construction on a project in a locality other than that in which its program is registered, the ratios and
wage rates (expressed in percentages of the journeyman's hourly rate) specified in the contractor's or
subcontractor's registered program shall be observed. Every apprentice must be paid at not less than the rate
specitied in the registered program for the apprentice's level of progress, expressed as a percentage of the
Journeymen hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination. Apprentices shall be paid fringe benefits
in accordance with the provisions of the apprenticeship program. If the apprenticeship program does not specify
- fringe benetits, apprentices must be paid the tull amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination for
the applicable classification. If the Administrator determines that a different practice prevails for the applicable
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apprentice classitication, fringes shall be paid in accordance with that determination. In the event the Office of
Apprenticeship Training, Employer and Labor Services, or a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the
Office, withdraws approval of an apprenticeship program, the contractor will no longer be permitted to utilize
apprentices at less than the applicable predetermmed rate for the work performcd until an acceptabie program is

approved.

(i) Trainees. Except as provided in 29 CFR 5.16, trainees will not be permitted to work at less than the
predetermined rate for the work performed unless they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in a
program which has received prior approval, evidenced by formal certification by the U.S. Department of Labor,
Employment and Training Administration. The ratio of trainees to journeymen on the job site shall not be greater
than permitted under the plan approved by the Employment and Training Administration. Every trainee must be
paid at not less than the rate specified in the approved program for the trainee's level of progress, expressed as a
_percentage of the journeyman hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination. Trainees shall be paid
- tringe benetits in accordance with the provisions-of the trainee program. If the trainee program does not mention
fringe benefits, trainees shall be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination unless the
Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division determines that there is an apprenticeship program associated with
the corresponding journeyman wage rate on the wage determination which provides for less than full fringe
benefits for apprentices. Any employee listed on the payroll at a trainee rate who is not registered and
participating in a training plan approved by the Employment and Training Administration shall be paid not less
than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed. In
addition, any trainee performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program
. shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed. In
the event the Employment and Training Administration withdraws approval of a training program, the contractor

will no longer be permitted to utilize trainees at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work

performed until an acceptable program is approved.

(iii) Equal employment opportunity. The utilization of apprentices, trainees and journeymen under this part shall
be in conformity with the equal employment opportunity requirements of Executive Order 11246, as amended,

and 29 CFR part 30.

" (5) Compliance with Copeiand Act requirements. The contractor shall comply with the requirements of 29 CFR
part 3, which are incorporated by reference in this coniract.

(6) Subcontracts. The contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses contained in 29 CFR
5.5(a)(1) through (10} and such other clauses as the (write in the name of the government agency) may by
appropriate instructions require, and aiso a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any
lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for the compliance by any subcontractor or
lower tier subcontractor with all the contract clauses in 29 CFR 5.5,

(7) Contract termination: debarment, A breach of the contract ciauses in 29 CFR 5.5 may be grounds for
termination of the contract, and for debarment as a contractor and a subcontractor as provided in 29 CFR 5.12.

(8) Compliance with Davis-Bacon and Related Act requirements. All rulings and interpretations of the Davis-
Bacon and Related Acts contained in 29 CFR parts 1, 3, and 5 are herein incorporated by reference into this

contract.

- (9) Disputes concerning labor standards. Disputes arising out of the labor standards provisions of this contract
shall not be subject to the general disputes clause of this contract. Such disputes shall be resolved in accordance
with the procedures of the tederal Department of Labor set forth in 29 CFR parts 5, 6, and 7. Disputes within the
meaning of this clause include disputes between the contractor (or any of its subcontractors) and the contracting
agency, the U.S. Department of Labor, or the employees or their representatives.
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(i) By entering into this contract, the contractor certifies that neither it (nor he or she} nor any person or firm who
has an interest in the contractor's firm is a person or tirm ineligible to be awarded Government contracts by virtue

of section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1).

(ii) No part of this contract shall be subcontracted to any person or firm ineligible for award of a Government
contract by virtue ot section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1).

* (iif) The penalty for making false statements is prescribed in the U.S. Criminal Code, 18 U.S.C, 1001 and New
Hampshire RSA Chapter 641. :

(b) Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act. For any contract in an amount in excess of $100,000 and
subject to the overtime provisions of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act. As used in this

paragraph, the terms laborers and mechanics include watchmen and guards.

(1) Overtime requirements. No contractor or subcontractor contracting for any part of the contract work which
- may require or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics shall require or permit any such laborer or
mechanic in any workweek in which he or she is employed on such work to work in excess of forty hours in such
workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half times
the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of forty hours in such workweek.

(2) Violation, liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages. [n the event of any violation of the clause set forth

in paragraph (b)(1) of this section the contractor and any subcontractor responsible therefor shall be liable for the

unpaid wages. In addition, such contractor and subcontractor shall be liable to the United States and the State of

. New Hampshire, for liquidated damages. Such liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to each
individual laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and guards, employed in violation of the clause set forth in

paragraph (b)(1) of this section, in the sum of $10 for each calendar day on which such individual was required or

permitted to work in excess of the standard workweek of forty hours without payment of the overtime wages

required by the clause set forth in paragraph (b)(1) of this section.

(3) Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages. The NH DHHS shall upon its own action or upon
written request of an authorized representative of the federal Department of Labor withhold or cause to be
withheld, from any moneys payable on account of work performed by the contractor or subcontractor under any

* such contract or any other contract with the same prime contractor, or any other federaily-assisted contract subject
to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, which is held by the same prime contractor, such sums as
may be determined to be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such contractor or subcontractor for unpaid wages
and liquidated damages as provided in the clause set forth in paragraph (b)(2) of this section.

(4) Subcontracts. The contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses set forth in
paragraph (b)(1) through (4) of this section and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses
in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any subcontractor or
- lower tier subcontractor with the clauses set forth in paragraphs (b)(1) through (4) of this section.

(¢) In any contract subject only to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act and not to any of the other
statutes cited in § 3.1, the contractor or subcontractor shall maintain payrolls and basic payroll records during the
course of the work and shall preserve them for a period of three years from the completion of the contract for all
laborers and mechanics, including guards and watchmen, working on the contract. Such records shall contain the
name and address of each such employee, social security number, correct classifications, hourly rates of wages
paid, daily and weekly number of hours worked, deductions made, and actual wages paid. Further, the records to
. be maintained under this paragraph shall be made available by the contractor or subcontractor for inspection,

copying, or transcription by authorized representatives of the State of New Hampshire and the federal Department
of Labor, and the contractor or subcontractor will permit such representatives to interview employees during

working hours on the job.
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The following term shall be included only for contracts involving the construction, reconstruction, alternation,

remodeling, installation, demolition, maintenance, or repair of any public work or building with a total project
cost of $100,000 or more, It is required by RSA 277.5-a for such projects paid for in whole or in part by State

fitnds and is a required contract term where only state managed federal funds will pay for the project.

The Contractor/Grantee agrees to have an Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) 10-hour
construction safety program for their on-site employees that complies with the requirements set forth in RSA

277:5-a, :
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

Standard Exhibit D

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act to 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C, 701
ct seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the

General Provisions execute the following Certification;
ALTERNATIVE [ - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES — CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE ~ CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-51-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace
Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 ¢t seq.). the January 31, 1989 regulations were
amended and published as Part Il of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages 21681-21691), and require
certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors), prior to award, that they will
maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630 of the regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference,
sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State may elect to make one certitication to the Department in each
federal tiscal year in lieu of certificates for each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification.
The certification set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency
. .awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments,

suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form

should send it to:

Commissioner
NH Department of Health and Human Services,
129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

1) The grantee certities that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing,
possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee’s workplace and specifying
the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition;

(b) Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employee’s about:

(1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

(2) The grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

(3) - Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring in

the workplace;

{¢) Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be given
a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the émployee will:

(1) Abide by the terms of the statement; and
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(2) Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug
statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction;

(e)  Notitying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under subparagraph
{d) (2) tfrom an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction. Employers of
convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant otficer on whose
grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency has designated a
central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the identification number(s) of

cach affected grant;

(f) Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted

(1} Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as

amended; or

(2)  Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health, law

enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

(8) Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation
of paragraphs (a), (b}, (c), (d), (), and ().

2) The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, State, zip code) (list each location)

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.
dba Community Health Institute

501 South Street, 2" Floor

Bow, Merrimack, NH 03304

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.
44 Farnsworth Street
Boston, Suffolk, MA 02210

Check if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. From: April 28, 2010 or date of G&C approval
: 1'o: January 31, 2012

dba Community Heaith [nstitute
Contractor Name Period Covered by this Certification

Jonathan Stewart, Director of Community Health Institute
Name and Title of Authorized Contractor Representative

ﬁ/{ " A S (o

Contractor lﬂp{‘e/s\et{tative Signature Date
A
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
Standard Exhibit E

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING -

The Contractor identitied in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of Section
319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 31 U.5.C. 1352,

and further agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General
Provisions execute the tollowing Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION ~ CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE ~ CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title [V-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title VI

#Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

Contract Period: April 28, 2010 or date of G&C approval, whichever is later, through January 31, 2012,

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

(1)

(2)

(3)

No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any
person for intluencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of
Congress, an ofticer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection
with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement {(and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-

contractor).

If any funds, other than Federal appropriated funds, have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an
officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report
Lobbying”, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-I.

The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award document
for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and
cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was
made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction
imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shail be
subject to civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

Director of Community Health Institute

Contractor\S}‘gMin[ Contractor’s Representative Title

Jonathan Stewart
Contractor Name

Date
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

Standard Exhibit F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY
e A e Ay AR LN L DU BRI I AND O R RESPONSIBILITY
MATTERS ‘ |

The Contractor identitied in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Otfice of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment, Suspension,
and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in
Sections 1.11 and 1,12 of the General Provisions, execute the following Certification:

Instructions for Certification

I.

By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below. .

The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial of
participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be considered
in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services’ (DHHS) determination whether to
enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary participant to furnish a

certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in this transaction.

The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when
DHHS determined to enter into this transition. If it is later determined that the prospective primary
participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the
Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default,

‘The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS. agenby to whom
this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns that its
certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed

circumstances.

The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered transition,”
“participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and “voluntary
excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of
the rule implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the attached definitions.

The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion —
Lower Tier Covered Transaction”, “provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered

transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a lower
tier covered transaction that it is not debatred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded from the
covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant rmay decide the
method and irequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but is
not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties)
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9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shail be construed to require establishment of a system of records in
order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and information of a
participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessecl by a prudent person in the ordinary

course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a covered
transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is suspended,
debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other
remedies available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default,

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

1. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:

are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily

a
excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

b. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted or had a civil
judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with
obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local) transaction or a
contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of
embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making faise statements,

or receiving stolen property;

are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity

(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph 1 b of this

certification; and

d. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default,

2. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

Lower Tier Covered Transactions
By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as

defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.

(b) where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and Voluntary
Exclusion — Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier covered

transactlons and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.,

Director of Community Health [nstitute

Contractoy @gndiyt Contractor’s Representative Title
Jonathan Stewart - /(/f < /()
Contractor Name Date
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

Standard Exhibit G

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s

representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

[. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990,

<L / W Director of Community Health Institute

Contra&t% Signhtqre Contractor’s Representative Title
Jonathan Stewart A(/, g. / [
Confractor Name ' ' Date '
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NH Department of Health and Human Services
STANDARD EXHIBIT H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE
_'—"*'“'_——"———__————-———-——-____—__,__

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994 (Act),
requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or contracted for by
an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education, or library services to
children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either directly or through State or
local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The law does not apply to children’s
services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of
facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure to comply with the provisions of the law may result
in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to $1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative

compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following

certification:

. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply with all
applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994,

Q‘J/ jﬂ#’_ Director of Community Health Institute

W%%or(ﬂignature Contractor’s Representative Title

l/. Y,/a

Jonathan Stewart
Date

Contractor Name
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State of Nefu Hampshire
HBepartment of SBtate

CERTIFICATE

[, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hﬁmpshire, do hereby
certify that Community Health Institute is a New Hampshire trade name registered on

March 29, 2007 and that JSIRESEARCH AND TRAINING INSTITUTE, INC. presently

own(s) this trade name. 1 further certify that it is in good standing as far as this office is

concerned, having paid the fees required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREOQF, I hereto
set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 2" day of April, A.D. 2010

ey Bkl

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




CERTIFICATE OF VOTE/AUTHORITY
I, Joel H. Lamstein, of the JSI Research & Training I[nstitute, Inc., d/b/a Community Health Institute, do hereby

certify that:

[ am the duly elected President of the JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc., d/b/a Community

Health Institute;

2. By Unanimous Consent in Writing of the Board of Directors in Lieu of the 2008 Annual Meeting, the

following is true copy of one resolution duly adopted by the Board of Directors of the JSI Research &

Training Institute, Inc., d/b/a Community Health Institute, duly dated Qctober 24, 2008;

RESOLVED: Appointment of Jonathan Stewart as Director of the Community Health Institute

with the authority to enter into contracts and agreements binding the Corporation.

3. I further certify that the foregoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked and remain in full

force and effect as of April 8, 2010,

IN WITNESS WHEREQOF, I have hereunto set my hand as the President of the JSI Research & Training Institute,

Inc.. d/b/a Community Health Institute this 8th day of April, 2010.

Joel Hl Lamstem, President

]
L

\\-

S’_I‘ATE OF New Hampshire

COUNTY OF Merrimack
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 8% day of April, 2010 by Joel H. Lamstein,

////4////6 V//Qm

Notary Public/Justice of the Peace
My Commission Expires:

ARIELLE SLAM, Notary Pubtic
~ly Commissgicn Cxnices April 15, 2014



ACQORD, CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATH (MM/DDIYYYY)
9/04/2009°

PRODUCER  (781)447-5531 FAX (781)447-7230
Mason & Mason Technology Insurance Services, Inc.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION
‘ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE
HOLDER, THIS CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AMEND, EXTEND OR

458 South Ave.
Whitman, MA 02382
Deborah Meaney

ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFOR

INSURERS AFFORDING COVERAGE

DED BY THE POLICIES BELOW.

NAIC #

INSURED Johnt Snow, Incg,

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. INSURER B:
44 Farnsworth St. INSURER C:
Boston, MA 02210-1214 INSURER D;

INSURER B!

INSURER & FEDERAL INSURANCE COMPANY

202381

COVERAGES

R DOCU

MENT WITH RESPECT TO WHI
N1i8 SUBJECT TOALL THE T

ED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING
CH THIS CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR
ERMS, EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH
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PHONE: 781.934.0460

NORMAN R. FOUGERE, Jr. CPA
Fax: 781-934-0606

99 Herrtaos Lang
DuxBURY, MA 02332.4334

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
J81 Research and Training Institute, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying statement of financial position of JSI Research and Training
Institute, Inc. (a Massachusetts non-profit organization) as of September 30, 2009, and the
related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Organization’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit, The
prior year. summarized comparative information has been derived from JSI Research and
Training Institute, Inc.’s 2008 financial statements, and in our report dated January 20, 2009, we
expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements,

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroiler General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that

our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. as of September 30, 2009, and
the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generaily accepted in the United States of America,

In accordance with Government A uditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated February
8, 2010 on our consideration of JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.’s internal control over
financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the resuits of
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on



compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government -
Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements
of JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. taken as a whole. The accompanying schedule of
expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the
U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments,
and Non-Profit Organizations, and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the

basic financial statements taken as a whole.
%—%— A, «a44

Duxbury, Massachusetts
February 8, 2010



JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
September 30, 2009
(With Comparative Totals for 2008)

2009 2008
ASSETS
Current Assets: _
Cash and cash equivalents .5 17,874,680 $ 11,996,849
Receivables for program work:
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 443,350 322,065
U.S. Department of Homeland Security - 64,524
Commonwealth of Massachusetts _ 409,037 683,951
Other 1,283,187 1,726,696
Field advances - program 2,900,174 1,222,704
Employee advances 79,522 91,489
Total Current Assets 22,989,950 16,107,678
Property and Equipment:
Office furniture and equipment 209,054 209,054
Less: Accumulated depreciation : (203,516) {199,570}
Net Property and Equipment 5,538 - 9,484
Other Assets: .
Depaosits _ 29,700 39,730
TOTAL ASSETS $ 23,025,188 $_ 16,156,892

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable and payroil withholdings $ 3,081,633 $ 1,957,509
Accrued vacation 775,904 681,692

Advances for program work:
U.S. Agency for International Development 2,725,346 4,408,539
U.S. Dept. of Health and Human Services 804,227 443,795
U.8. Dept. of Homeland Security 66,567 -
Other 9,608,806 4,650,585
Loans payable 218,584 6,394
Contingencies - -
Total Current Liabilities 17,281,667 12,148,514

Net Assets:

Unrestricted 5,744,121 4,008,378
Total Net Assets 5,744,121 4,008,378
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 23,025,188 S 16,156,892

See notes to financial statements.



JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc,
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Year Ended September 30, 2009
(With Comparative Totals for 2008)

UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS:

Public Support and Revenue

Public Support: _
Government grants and contracts:

U.S. Government
Commonwealth of Massachusetts
Other grants and contracts
Program income
Contributions
In Kind Project Contributions
Interest income

Total Unrestricted Support and Revenue

Expenses

Program Services:
International programs
Domestic programs

Total Program Services

Supporting Services:
Management and General

Total Expenses

Increase (Decrease) in Unrestricted Net Assets

Net Assets at Beginning of Year

Net Assets at End of Year

See notes to financial statements.

2009 2008
92,435,002 $ 96,530,417
3,603,725 5,502,074
46,951,256 30,154,153
75,675 151,799
472,958 650,000
6,915,970 9,307,487
52,431 83,220
150,507,017 142,379,150
128,830,885 120,232,196
8,645,515 10,248,399
137,476,400 130,480,595
11,294,874 10,092,763
148,771,274 140,573,358
1,735,743 1,805,792
4,008,378 2,202,586
5,744,121 $ 4,008,378
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inec.
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Year Ended September 30, 2009
(With Comparative Totals for 2008)

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:

Increase (Decrease) in net assets

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net
cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
(Increase) Decrease in receivables for program work
(Increase) Decrease in field advances - program
(Increase) Decrease in employee advances
(Increase) Decrease in deposits
Increase (Decrease) in accounts payable and

payroil withholdings ‘

Increase (Decrease) in accrued vacation
Increase (Decrease) in advances for program work

Net Cash Provided (Used) By
Operating Activities
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Acquisition of property and equipment

Net Cash Provided (Used) By
Investing Activities

Cash Flows From Financing Activities:

Proceeds from loans payabie
Payments of loans payable

Net Cash Provided (Used) By
Financing Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year

See notes to financial statements.

2009 2008

$ 1,735,743 $ 1,805,792
3,946 4,099
661,062 (92,457)
(1,677,470) (200,225)
11,967 (53,138)

10,030 (17,029)
£,124,124 290,419
94,212 135,541
3,702,027 596,992
5,665,641 2,469,994

. (1,883)

. (1,883)

1,881,803 1,824,515
(1,669,613) (2,113,559)
212,190 (289,044)
5,877,831 2,179,067
11,996,849 9,817,782

S 17,874,680 $ 11,996,849
6



JSI Research and Training

Mission Statement

JSI Research and Training Institute was incorporated in 1987 as a 501©3 non-profit
otganization in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, Our mission is to aileviate public

. health problems both in the United States and in developing countries around the world
through applied research, technical assistance and training. JSI maintains offices in Boston,
Massachusetts; Washington, [D.C.; Denver, Colorado and Concord, New Hampshire; as well
as seven overseas offices in developing nations. Since its inception, JSI has successfuily
completed more than 400 contracts in the health and human service fields.



Community Health Institute

Mission Statement

'The Community Health Institute’s mission is to support and strengthen New Hampshire’s
health care system by providing coordinated information dissemination and technical
assistance resources to health care providers, managers, planners, and policy makers,

statewide. Our success translates into improved access to quality health and social services
for all New Hampshire residents,



JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.
d.b.a Community Health Institute

Officers
Name Title Address
Joel H. Lamstein President 45 Pinecrest Road
Newton, MA 02159
Joel H. Lamstein Treasurer 45 Pinecrest Road
Newton, MA 02159
Patricia Fairchild Clerk 80 Pineridge Road
' Newton, MA 02159
Joanne McDade Asgistant Clerk 10 Walton Street
North Billerica, MA
Board of Directors
Name Address
Joel H. Lamstein 45 Pinecrest Road
Newton, MA 02159
Patricia Fairchild 30 Pineridge Road
Newton, MA 02159
Herbert S. Urbach 70 Fuller Brook Road
Wellesley, MA 02482
Norbert Hirschhomn 115 Greencroft Gardens

London NW6 3PE
England, U.K.



KEY ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL

NH Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Public Heaith Services

Agency Name:

Name of Bureau/Section:

J3I Research & Training Institute, Inc. d/b/a
Community Health Institute

Bureau of Prevention Services/ Obesity
Prevention Program and the Tobacco
Prevention and Control Program

| SEYC20107% 4128120107 6130201080 0

Annual Salary Of Key Percentage of
Administrative - Salary Paid By
Name & Title Key Administrative Parsonnel Personnal Contract
Jonathan Stewart, Executive Director $108,106 0.00%|
Karyn Madore, Senior Consuitant $76,200 5.22%
Paddy DiPadova, Senior Consultant $99,000 8.70%;:"
Katie Robert, Projact Assistant . $35,500 8.70%|:
Health Educator/Evaluator (vacant position) $49,680 0.00%}-

TOTAL SALARIES (Nat to exceed Total/Salary Wages, Line item 1 of Budget request)

BUDGET PERIODT B0 T Thr 0 [SR Y2044 71120103 613020000 0,
Annual Salary Of Key Percentage of
Administrative Salary Paid By
Name & Title Key Administrative Parsonnel Personnel Contract !
Jonathan Stewart, Executive Director $111,350 0.00%}:+
- [Karyn Madore, Senior Consuitant $79,120 24.58%
Paddy DiPadova, Senior Consultant $101,200 24.97% ",
Katie Robert, Project Assistant $36,800 49.68%[x: ‘18‘;28230{1%:
Health Educator/Evaluator (vacant position) $51,520 49.98% ) 525, 760008

TOTAL SALARIES (Not to exceed TotaliSalar&Wages, Line item 1 of Budget request)

. $88754.001)

' BUDGET PERIOO:

TSEYi 201272 711/120147541311201 %

Annual Salary Of Key

Percentage of

Administrative Salary Paid By

Name & Title Key Administrative Personnel Parsonnel Contract

Jonathan Stewart, Executive Director $114,688 0.00%;. i3sie

Karyn Madore, Senior Consuitant 580,960 19.54%). ~ $15,817. 00%‘
Paddy DiPadova, Senior Consultant $104,880 17.42%" $181266:00%
Katie Robert, Project Assistant $36,800 33.37%| -+ $12:281:00%
Heaith Educator/Evaluator (vacant position) $53,380 28.09%] 14991008
TOTAL SALARIES (Not to exceed Total/Salary Wages, Line Item 1 of Budget request) $61,355.00¢

Key Administrative Personnel are top-level agency leadership (President, Executive Director, CEQ, CFO,
etc), and individuals directly invoived in operating and managing the program (project director, program

manager, etc.). These personnef MUST be fisted, even if no salary is paid from the contract. Provide
their name, title, annual salary and percentage of annual salary paid from agreement.




JONATHAN A. STEWART

JSSI Research & Training institute, inc. dba Community Health Institute
501 South Street - 2 Floor, Bow, NH 03304 - (603) 573-3300

Jstewartyfsi.com

EDUCATION

DUk E UNVERSITY SCHOOL OF MEDICINE
Department of Health Administration, Masters in Health Administration — 1986

DUKE UNIVERSITY SCHOOL OF MEDICINE
Department Of Biochemistry, Masters in Biochemistry - 1984

) UNIVER_SITY OF DELAWARE
School of Arts & Sciences, Bachelor of Arts in Biology - 1981

LEXPERIENCE

JSI, Bow, New Hampshire
Director, September 2000 to present

- NH DHHS, Community and Public Health Development Program
Project Director for initiative to provide technical assistance and training support to communities
involved in development of regional public health infrastructure, including capacity to respond to

bioterrorism and other public health emergencies.

Robert Wood Johnson Foundation
Project Director for New Hampshire Turning Point Initiative to develop sustainable strategies to

improve local public health capacity.

Endowment for Health, Concord, NH
Study of the effect of New Hampshire’s Community Benefits Law for Health Care Charitable

Trusts; developed revised Community Benefit reporting guide. Cooperative effort with Office of
Health Planning and the NH Office of the Attorney General.

HRSA, BHPr, NHSC _
Conducted 5 year program data summary of the National Health Service Corps based on National

Health Service Corps Uniform Data System (1999-2003).

NH Division of Alcohol & Drug Prevention & Recovery
Evaluation of state-wide ATOD prevention initiative involving multiple community-based

coalitions implementing a range of programs.

‘Family Planning Private Sector Project, Nairobi, Kenya
Operations research on cost effectiveness and sustainability of FP/MCH service delivery sites

throughout Kenya to assist the Project and USAID in resource allocation decisions.

USAID, Bridgetown, Barbados
Management training and technical assistance project for Family Planning Associations in eight

Eastern Caribbean countries. Feasibility analysis for development of a work-site clinic and day
care facility in Grenada.

New York State Department of Health, Albany, New York
Qualitative Evaluation of New York State Healthy Heart Program; an eight project initiative to

influence CVD risk factors through community intervention and social marketing.

J. Stewart |



Bureau of Health Professions, Rockville, Maryland
Study of the effect of AIDS Education and Training Centers on physician attitudes and practices;

Comparative analysis of parallel CDC-funded study of the general PCP population,

Penobscot Nation Health Department, Old Town, Maine
Community Health Needs Assessment and Internal Program Assessment. Involved household

surveys of health status, health behaviors, service utilization, and satisfaction.

Bureau of Primary Heaith Care, Rockville, Maryland
Survey project to gather information on provider practices in Community and Migrant Health

Services relative to recommendations of the 1988 US Preventive Services Task Force.

NH Environmental Public Health Tracking Program
Planning and assessment for development of the New Ham

Health Tracking program.

pshire DHHS Environmental Public

Endowment for Health & UNH Institute for Health Policy & Practice
Project to improve access to health data for community health planning including gathering

tnformation on approaches to web-based query and reporting systems.

North Country Health Consortium, Littleton, New Hampshire, General Manager 12/97 - 8/00
Rural heaith care network formed by four hospitals, two community health centers, two home health care
agencies, a community mental health center, and a community action program. [nitiated with HRSA, Rural

Network Development grant.
NH Area Health Education Center; Dartmouth College, Hanover, NH, Co-Project Director of

Northern New Hampshire Area Health Education Center providing continuing education and
training support to health professionals in northern half of the State.

North Country Health Information Network; NCHC; Littleton, NH. Development and
coordination of secure intranet for communication and patient care coordination among vertical
network of rural health and human service organizations.

Ammonoosuc Community Health Services, Littleton, New Hampshire
Operations Director/l 1/94 - 12/97 of federally-funded rural multi-site Community Health Center Network.

Mount Moosetaukee Heaith Center, Warren, New Hampshire
Part-time Director/8/93 - 1 1/94 of small rural community health center prior to merger with Ammonaosug

Community Health Services,
John Snew, Inc., Boston, Massachusetts

Consultant/] 0/86 - 7/94 providing assistance in areas of health services research and evaluation, market
research, financial analysis and program management.

SELECTED PUBLICATIONS AND ABSTRACTS

Rosenfeld, LA, Fox CE, Kerr D, Marziale E, Cullum A, Lota K, Stewart J, and Thompson MZ. "Use Of
Computer Modeling For Emergency Preparedness Functions By Local And State Health Officials: 4 Needs
Assessment”. 1 Public Health Management Practice, 2009, 15(2), 96-104.

Stewart J, Kassler W, McLeod M. “Public Health Partnerships: A New Hampshire Dance ",
‘Transformations in Public Health, Winter 2002, Volume 3, Issue 3.

- Stewart, JA, Wroblewski S, Colapietro J, Davis H. “Survey of US Physicians Trained by Regional AIDS
Education and Training Centers”. Abstract No, PO-D21-4047; IXth International Conference on AIDS,

Berlin, Germany, June 6-11, 1993,

I. Stewart 2



KARYN DUDLEY MADORE

JSI Research & Training, Inc, dba Community Health Institute, _
501 South Street, 2nd floor, Bow, New Hampshire 03304  (603) 573-3305

kmadore(@yjsi.com

EDUCATION
PLYMOUTH STATE COLLEGE, PLYMOUTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE

M.Ed., Counseling 1995

PLYMOUTH STATE COLLEGE, PLYMOUTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE
8.5, 1987, Business Administration & Marketing

EXPERIENCE
Community Health Institute, Bow, New Hampshire

Senior Consultant, August 1998 — present
Since joining CHI in 1998, Karyn Madore, Senior Consultant has provided consultation to a wide variety of domestic public

" health projects. Her areas of expertise include project management, media and health communication strategies, social
communication and team building, staff development, planning and implementation of programs, technical assistance, and
facilitation. Ms. Madore has over twenty years experience planning and implementing a variety of programs.

NH Tobacco Addiction Treatinent Services (TATS)
Serve as Project Director for the NH TATS project, which is a follow on to the NH Tobacco Use Cessation and Counter

Marketing Project completed in FY07. Incorporating the original three major components: 1) the toll free NH Smokers’
Helpline offering services in English, Spanish and Portuguese through which smokers and other citizens of New
Hampshire receive information on any aspect of tobacce and may be referred to state-of-the-art prevention and tobacco
freatment resources, if appropriate; 2) the promotion of the NH Smokers’ Helpline through a variety of traditional and
non-traditional media outlets; and 3) a Tobacco Education Clearinghouse, which develops and distributes in bulk
quantities high quality, culturally appropriate tobacco education materials, ‘This initiative includes the development of a
consortium of heaith insurers who are willing to promote TTS-NH to their subscribers directly and endorse QuitWorks-
NH to their contracted health care providers, thus providing them with a uniform system and a single portal for referring

their patients who use tobacco for state-of-the-art treatment,

Communication Training
Researched, customized and implement a communication training that aims to help individuals identify their personal

communication strengths and weaknesses and provide them with the information to make them more effective
communicators. This training is an effective tool in organizational and leadership development, team building, and
career planning and conflict resolution. To date this training has been provided to the following organizations:

NH Tobacco Prevention and Control Program; NH Red Cross Granite Chapter; Community Health Institute; and

MIT Medical

NH Teen Foster Conference
Serve as Project Director for the third annual NH Teen Foster Conference working closely with the DCYF staff and

Youth Advisory Board, to develop workshops and materials that are most interesting and helpful to the youth to meet
their mission and goals.

NH HIV Logisties and Capacity Building
Served as Project Director for the NH HIV Logistics and Capacity Building Project. This project provides logistical and

capacity building support for the NH HIV community planning process and for funded HIV Prevention Services,

Ylassachusetts Institute of Technology, Medical Department,
Contracted to provide customized customer service training to employees of the MIT Medical Department, building on

the training originally developed for the OB/GYN service by customizing it to use in other services and to provide
training sessions to employees of the MIT Medical Department. Contracted to conduct a customer service assessment

and training as part of an overalt focused practice review.

K. Madore |




NH Tobacco Use Cessation and Counter Marketing (TUCCM)

Served as Program and Media Manager for the NH TUCCM project completed June 30, 2007. This project incorporates
three major components: 1) the toll free NH Smokers’ Helpline offering services in English, Spanish and Portuguese
through which smokers and other citizens of NH receive information on any aspect of tobacco and may be referred to
state-of-the-art prevention and tobacco treatment resources, if appropriate; 2) the promotion of the NH Smokers’
Helpline through a variety of traditional and non-traditional media outlets; and 3) 4 Tobacco Education Clearinghouse.

New England Rural Health RoundTable (NERHRT) Annual Symposium Fall 2006
Served as Project Director for the NERHRT Annual Symposium, NERHRT’s mission is to provide support and
resources to tural health professionals througliout NE to improve the health and well-being of their communities,

Conference on Aging 2006 & 2007
Served as Media Coordinator for the New Hampshire Division of Elderly and Adult's annual conference on aging to

generate awareness regarding the 2006 & 2007 Conference on Aging through the NH media.

NH Try-To-STOP TOBACCO Resource Center
Program Manager for the New Hampshire Try-To-STOP TOBACCO Resource Center, which incorporated three major

components: 1) the Tobacco-Free Helpline offering services in English, Spanish and Portuguese through which smokers
and other citizens of New Hampshire receive information on any aspect of tobacco and may be referred to state-of-the-

art prevention and tobacco treatment resources, if appropriate; 2) the www, {rytostop, org web site, home of the Quit
Wizard, a self-guided, evidence-based Internet smoking cessation program; and 3} a Tobacco Education Clearinghouse.

‘Tobacco Technical Assistance and Development (TA)
Project Director and Co-TA Coordinator of the TA Project funded by the NH DHHS to develop and implemented a

comprehensive needs assessment and strategic planning process that allowed the NH Tobacco Prevention and Control
Program and its community partners to maximize the impact of [imited resources with an emphasis on those who are

most disparately impacted by tobacco. Concurrently, this project provided TA to existing tobacco cessation coalitions in
NH and utilized the data collected through the needs assessment to fund additional tobaceo coalitions around the state.

New Hampshire Abstinence Education (AE)
Project Director of a multi-year program which researched evidenced-based programs that resuifed in the implementation

of a NH abstinence media campaign and an advisory group of key stakeholders for the project.

Community Grant Program :
Served as Project Director to provide and coordinate technical assistance for the Office of Planning and research. The

New Hampshire Community Grant Program, part of a public trust fund established with federal Medicaid funds, is
designed to support community-based health initiatives.

Healthy Child Care New Hampshire & Health & Safety Curriculum
Project Director and co-coordinator of training’s and networking opportunities to a newly created cadre of Child Care

Health Consultants working to assure safe healthy child care environments and to ensure health access for children in
child care settings. The development of a statewide Health & Safety Curriculum was used to train NH child care
providers in best practices and informed the process of training a cadre of Child Care Health Consuitants.

New Hampshire Central Integrated Service Systems
Served as Project Director and co-coordinator of training’s and networking opportunities to 6 nurse consultants and

others working in childcare and Healthy Start settings to build a system for assuring health and social support setvices in
child care environments.

PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATIONS
Circle Program, Mentor 1993 - Present
Concord Area Red Cross Board of Directors: 2001 -- 2007
*  Vice-Chair, Board of Directors — 2004 — 2005
*  President, Board of Directors — 2005 - 2007
* NH Comprehensive Cancer Collaborative Oversight Board 2008 - Present
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PATRICIA GRAY DI PADOVA

JSI Research & Training, Inc. dba Community Health Institute,
501 South Street 2" floor, Bow, New Hampshire 03304 (603)573-3300

pdipadova@jsi.com

EDUCATION

WIHFTTEMORE SCHOOL OF BUSINESS AND ECONOMICS, UNIVERSTTY OF Nisw FIAMPSHiRF
MBA., 1996

DARTMOUTH COLLEGE
B.A., Psychology, 1984

EXPERIENCE

COMMUNITY HEALTH INSTITUTE, Bow, NH

Sentor Consultant, June 1997 to present
Responsibilities include providing consultation to health care, social service, government and community-based

organizations in the areas of operations, data analysis, community needs assessment, systems integration and network
development. A selective sample of projects follows:

Adolescent Heaith Plan Development .
Developed a Needs Assessment and Gap Analysis, in conjunction with the State of NH Division of

Community and Public Health Adolescent Program staff, to identify needs in New Hampshire and potential
gaps in services by population and geographic location whenever possible.

Alliance for Health Care Improvement
Provided executive direction and logistical support. The Alliance for Health Care Improvement is a

collaborative of Massachusetts's not-for-protit HMO Medical Directors that exists to promote cost-
effective, population-wide strategies designed to improve the health status of all enrolled members.

New Hampshire Asthma Action Planning, Indoor and Qutdoor Environments
Worked with the NH Asthma Control Program, DHHS, and the Northern NH Area Health Education Center

(AHEC) to conduct a planning process that results in recommendations for implementing selected Indoor and
Outdeor Environments actions steps consistent with the NH Asthma Action Plan.

Try-Ta-Stop Tobacco Resource Center of New Hampshire, QuitWorks-NH
Assist in expanding the Massachusetts QuitWorks program to New Hampshire through collaboration with
New Hampshire and Massachusetts ~based heaith plans. Provide contract development, negotiation and

support for the expansion process.

Massachusetts Tobacco Resource Center, QuitWorks
Provided contract development and support for partnership with the Massachusetts Department of Public

Health, Massachusetts heaith plans and JSI for a newly developed Massachusetts Tobacco Resource Center
(MTRC). The MTRC provides telephone counseling services for tobacco cessation, a web site and the
Magsachusetts Tobacco Clearinghouse for tobacco cessation materials. Worked with a team representing
public heaith and health pians to develop a universal referral form for all health plans and operations
development for the center. Developed the criteria for feedback reports to the health plans. Provided HIPAA

expertise,
Facilitated strategic planning and work plan development.

Behavioral Health Parity Legislative Review
For the New England Rural Heaith Round Table researched and reviewed current and pending legislation in

the six New England states relevant to behavioral health insurance parity with medical coverage. Analyzed
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the expected impact of the various legislative initiatives on rural communities. Provided a literature search of
behavioral health parity issues pertinent to rural areas and background on a nationat scale and from other

states,

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services, Otfice of Planning and Research, Concord, NH,
Compiled and reviewed inventory/matrix of health benefits packages mandated by states for the
a) individual/small group, b) high risk pool, and ¢) uninsured populations or markets,

Region I Office of Population Affairs, Boston, MA
Conducted comprehensive assessment of Region [ Title X program’s participation in managed care and
recommend strategies tor assisting family planning agencies to better position themselves in the managed

care marketplace.

VALLEY REGIONAL HEALTHCARE, Claremont, NH

Director of Professional Services and Network Development, 1992 to 1997

Responsible for managed care and direct contracting for physicians (employed and also those in the community),
hospital, home care company, pharmacies and mental heaith unit. Part of a contract negotiation team for 15-hospital
Rural Health Coalition. Responsible for the oversight of all services relating to medical staff, including: clinic
operations, recruitment, practice management, credentialing, Management Services Organization (MSO), and medical
+ staff relations. Provide practice management consulting and support to area practices. Assisted in development of'a
new community-based managed care organization, including provider network development. Responsible for
development and negotiation of contracts for hospitals, physicians, mid-level providers and alternative medicine
providers. Developed provider credentialing criteria and provided oversight to the credentialing process.

DARTMOUTH-HITCHCOCK COMMUNITY HEALTH CENTER, Hanover, NH

Practice/Business Manager, 1990 to 1992 _
Responsible for the administration and the clinical and clerical support functions of a newly developed multi-

disciplinary primary care group practice. Responsible for program planning, development, organization and marketing,
- Managed quality assurance using Total Quality Management techniques. Organized and implemented occupational

medicine programs in local businesses and schools.

HARVARD COMMUNITY HEALTH PLAN NASHUA MEDICAL GROUP, Nashua, NH

Clinical Site Coordinator, {984 to {990
Managed daily operations of a primary care site including Pediatrics, Internal Medicine, Mental Health, laboratory,

radiology and other anciilary services. Responsible for oversight of the major business functions of the practice
including planning for a $4.3 million budget and financial reporting; HMO claims and payment, benefit interpretation;
utilization and review, and fee-for-service billing. Assured contractual compliance with referral physicians.

- Developed, implemented and monitored policies and procedures contributing to State Clinic Licensure.

Administrative Services Specialist, 1987 to 1988
Responsible for all major business functions for medical practice servicing about 6000 enrolled members including

HMO claims and payments, health benetits advisors, Pediatrics, Internal Medicine, and Obstetrics and Gynecology,
clinical and secretarial support statf and medical records staff. Implemented the computer conversion for medical
billing; set up new fee-for-service billing system; hired and trained staff, Processed approximately $500,000 in
overdue claims payments left from MultiGroup merger. Assisted in long-term financial, budget, staffing, and systems

planning.
OTHER ACTIVITIES

New Hampshire Governor’s Council, Cancer and Chronic Disease, /995 to present

Vice Chair, 2004 to 2006 .
Elected Member of the Newport School District School Board, 2003 fo 2008

Swift Water Girl Scout Council Girl Scout Leader Group #22567, 2002 to present

Women's Health Network, /993 to 1997
President, American Cancer Society, Sullivan Unit, Claremont/Newport, NH /993 to 1994

- Board Member, Chairperson, Public Education Committee, /991 to {999

Z
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KATHERINE ROBERT, MPA

WAY) Résearch & Training, Inc. dba Community Health Institute,
501 South Street 2 floor, Bow, New Hampshire 03304 (603)573-3300

krobert@jsi.com

EDUCATION

UNIVERSITY OF NEW HAMPSHIRE, DURHAM, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Bachelor of Arts in Political Science, 2006
Master of Public Administration, 2009

EXPERIENCE

Community Health Institute, Bow, NH

Profect Assistant, December 2007 to present
JSI provides consultation to health care organizations in the areas of health services delivery, public health,

practice management, information for decision-making, and program evaluation. Clients include
government agencies, public and private health care providers (hospitals, group practices, community
health centers, family planning organizations, health maintenance organizations, community based
coalitions and social service agencies). JSI is a health care consulting firm working with clients in the
public and private sectors, Since 1978, JSI has provided consulting, research and training services for
agencies and organizations seeking to improve the health of individuais, communities and nations,

Bureau of Primary Health Care {BPHC), National Health Service Corps (NHSC), and
Urban Indian Heailth Program (UITHP) UDS

Serves as a project assistant for a major initiative to collect ‘Uniform Data System’ (UDS)
information from all BPHC, and UIHP funded and NHSC non-federally funded sites across the
country. Responsibilities include technical phone assistance for grantees, sites, consultants, and
regional and central NHSC and BPHC staff. Follow up with non-submitting grantees and sites to
increase number of reports received. Assign received reports to editors and track progress of
editing process. Compilation and distribution of training materials. Assistance in defining and
organizing proposed changes to software and edits. Testing of software functionality and edits for
user, editor, regional/central and national versions. Produce rollup, comparison, and other key

management reports used during entire process.

Manchester Sustainable Access Project (MISAP) Provides administrative and logistical support
to the MSAP project. The goal of MSAP is to design and implement an integrated community
network of primary care for the city’s most vulnerable populations by integrating mental health,
dental and primary care services, MSAP attempts to enhance community access to Federai 330
grant funding and Medicaid enhanced reimbursement for providers through the expansion of the

FQHC programs in the area.

Manchester Community Needs Assessment Provided logistical support to the project by serving
as a liaison between the MSAP Data Committee and the Community Health Institute team.
Assigned team roles, managed the budget, and defined key deadlines. Collected quantitative state
and local data, as weli as analyzed and summarized focus group and key informant survey data.
Assisted in the development and editing of the final Needs Assessment Report.

Strategic Prevention Framework — Local Regional Evaluation Data entry and data analysis for
surveys of four regions. Worked in SPSS to clean and analyze the data. Created summary reports

to provide to the client.
Child & Family Services Adolescent Substance Abuse Treatment Program

Provides support and data management services for Child and Family Services (CFS}) for the
CSAT funded Assertive Adolescent and Family Treatment (AAFT-3) project. The CFS
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Adolescent Substance Abuge Treatment Program (ASAT) was designed to provide New
Hampshire adolescents in Merrimack, Hillsborough and western Rockingham counties with quick
casy access lo community-based substance abuse treatment. Data management activities include:
Acts as the liaison between Chestnut Health Systems, CSAT and CFS data systems, provides
ongoing technical assistance and support in setting up and maintaining the ABS/GAIN data
coilection systems, compile and report on client satisfaction survey upon discharge from ASAT
program, ongoing data monitoring and technical assistance, conduct process and outcome
cvaluation activities, evaluation tool development, data collection training and support for CF§
staft as needed to maintain quality data, SPSS and Access database development, creating client
tracking systems, web based GPRA data entry, data cleaning and analysis, and report writing.

New Hampshire Association for Justice, Concord, NH

Member Services Coordinator, July 2006 — November 2007

Managed all aspects of member services, including seminar and event planning and marketing. Managed
association website, database and listservs. Assistant edifor of a quarterly scholarly journal for the trial bar.
Responsible for soliciting and managing reiationships with advertisers and event sponsors, Responsible
for PAC development and other member service programs. Communicated and worked closely with the
Board of Governors and committee chairs. Minor lobbying duties; monitoring hearings, communicating

with legislators and staff as needed.

New Hampshire State Senate, Concord, NH

Senate Staff, May 2006 — July 2006
Worked in different capacities in the Senate Clerk’s Office, transcribing verbatim minutes, as well as

participating in session by organizing, docketing, and proofing bills. Asgistant to Senator Robert Odell,
organizing and scheduling meetings. Secretary for the study committee on the leasing of Mt. Sunapee.,
Responsible for scheduling and organizing meetings, as well as creating the final report of the committee.

New Hampshire State Senate, Concord, NH

Intern, January 2006 ~ May 2006 :
Interned for Senate Majority Leader Robert E. Clegg, Jr. Performed research for legislation, wrote

speeches, and testified on behalf of Senator Clegg at public hearings.
HONORS AND AWARDS

University Honors Program, 2002-2006, University of New Hampshire

Dean’s List, Fall 2002 - Spring 2006, University of New Hampshire

Pi Sigma Alpha, 2005-2006, Member, Political Science Honor Society

Graduated Magna Cum Laude, and with University Honors, 2006, University of New Hampshire

COMPUTER SKILLS

Proficient in Microsoft Word, Excel, and Publisher.
Working knowledge of Microsoft Access, QuickBooks, Adobe Photoshop, and SPSS.
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New Hampshire Statewide Policy and Environmental Assessment Project
Health Educator/Evaluator, To Be Defined With Contract Award

There is a role for a Health Educator/Evaluator and, in collaboration with OPP/TPCP,
CHI will determine if staff needs to be hired or if that role can be filled through a combination of
'community partnerships and current CHI staff. The budget supports this position through tunding
current ot new staff and/or sitb-contracts with partners. Evaluation is critical to any successful
project and this role will be filled across the CHI team and through process analysis against the
proposed workplan in collaboration with OPP/TPCP. '

Project Director Qualifications:

Bachelor or Master's Degree Health Promotion, Health Education, Disease Prevention or
related field. Experience developing educational materials, public education campaigns, and

training and technical assistance. -
CHI has access to a team of Health Education and Ouireach specialists who regularly provide

education and outreach strategies, develop and disseminate casy-to-read and understand
information appropriate to the needs of the priority population(s). Specifically, this team has the

skills to:

¢ plan, organize, direct and evaluate health education programs for targeted communities

. and groups in NH.

+ work with other health professionals, civic groups, and community officials to determine
health needs, gather data and evaluate the availability of public education, awareness and
outreach campaigns. B

develop and provide professional development training sessions.

provide technical assistance to identified audiences.

engage identified communities.

develop culturally sensitive materials for diverse audiences.

coordinate data collection.



Budget Form

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Public Health Services

COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

JSI Research & Training Institute, Ine. d/b/a

Bidder/Program Name: Community Health Institute

Budget Request for: RFP # {0-DPHS-OPP-TPCP-ASSESSMENT-18
(Name af RFP}

Budget Period: 4-28-2010 to 6-30-2010
1. Total Salary/Wages $ 17,381,461 $ - $ 17,381.46
2. Employee Benefits $ 7,083,471 % - $ 7,083.47
3, Consultants 3 - b - 3 -
4. Equipment: 3 1,38247 1 - 3 1,382.47
Rental 3 2,136.00 | $ - 3 2,136.00
Repair and Maintenance $ - b - b -
Purchase/Depreciation $ - 3 - 3 -
5. Supplies: $ - $ - 3 -
Educational b 1,714.47 | $ - $ 1,714.47
Lab 3 - 3 - 3 -
Pharmacy 3 - $ - $ -
Medical 5 - 3 - $ -
Qffice 3 1,633.47 1 % - 3 1,633.47
6. Travel 3 1,714.47 1 § - b . 1,714.47
7. Occupancy b 2,891.4718% - 3 2,891.47
8. Current Expenses $ - 3 -
Telephone 3 1,549.47 | $ - 3 1,549.47
Postage 3 1,47947 1 3 - 3 1,479.47
Subscriptions 3 - $ - $ -
Audit and Legal $ - $ - 3 -
Insurance ] - b - 5 -
Board Expenses 3 - 3 - 3 -
9. Software $ - 3 - 3 -
10. Marketing/Communications b 2214471 % - 3 2,214.47
11. Staff Education and Training $ - 13 - 13 -
12. Subcontracts/Agreements 3 3,214.47 13 - 3 3,214.47
13. Other (specific dewils mandatory); 3 - 3 - 3 -
Partner/Stakeholder meetings $ - 3 - ] -
Printing $ 1,76547 | § - $ 1,765.47
b - 3 - $ -
: Sub-Total Direct Costs| 3§ 46,160.60 | $ - $ 46,160.60
14, Indirect Costs (not to exceed 10% of direct costs) $ 4,616.06 | $ - 3 - 4,616.06
“TOTAL $ 50,777.00 [ § . i S "~ 50,777.00

DHHS Program/Section Manager Approva ¢

initials



Budget Form

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Public Health Services

COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD ]

JSI Research & ‘Training Institute, Ine. d/b/a

Bidder/Program Name: Conununity Health Institute

Budget Request for: RFP # 10-DPHS-OPP-TPCP-ASSESSMENT-18

(Name of RFP)
Budget Period: . 7-1-2010 to 6-30-2011

7

1. Total Salary/Wages $ 101,606.00 4 $ - 13 101,606.00

2. Employee Benefits 3 35562001 3 - [ .35,562.00

3. Consultants 3 - 3 - b ‘ -

4, Equipment: $ 1,016.00 § $ - $ 1,016.00 -
Rental 3 - b - $ -
Repair and Maintenance S - b - 13 -
Purchase/Depreciation $ - 3 - $ -

5. Supplies: 3 - 3 - 3 - '
Educational 3 10,000.00 ) § - 3 10,000,00 é
Lab 3 - ¥ - $ - ¢
Pharmacy 3 - 3 - 3 -
Medical 3 - 3 - 3 . -
Office 3 2,540,001 % - 3 2,540,00

6. Travel 3 2,000.00 ] % - 3 2,000.00 ¢

7. Occupancy b 10,160.00 | $ - 3 10,160.00

8. Current Expenses 3 - 135 -
Telephone 3 2,032.00 F 3 - $ 2,032,00
Postage 3 2,000.00 | § - b 2,000.00
Subscriptions $ - $ - 3 S
Audit and Legal 3 - 3 - $ -
Insurance $ - $ - $ -
Board Expenses 3 - 3 - 3 -

9. Software 3 - 3 - 3 -

10. Marketing/Communications 3 15,120.00 § $ - 3 15,120.00 {1

11. Staff Education and Training 3 500001 8% - 3 500.00

12. -Subcontracts/Agreements $ 23,5000013 - 3 23,500.00 |

13. Other (specilic details mandatory): 3 - 3 - 3 .-
Partner/Stakeholder meetings $ 5,000.00 | 3 - 3 5,000.00
Printing 3 5,000.00 § 3 - 3 5,000.00

§ - 3 -
Sub-Total Direct Costs| $ 216,036.00 ¢ § - 3 216,036,00
14, Indirect Costs {not to exceed 10% of direct costs) $ 24,004,001 $ - 3 24,004.00
TOTAL 5 240,040.00 | § N 240,040.00

DHHS Program/Section Manager Approval\'!)f gf:

initials



Budget Form

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Public Heaith Services )

COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. d/h/a
Bidder/Program Name: Community Health Institute

Budget Request for; RFP # 10-DPHS-OPP-TPCP-ASSESSMENT-18
(Nume of REP)

7-1-2011 to 1-31-2012

Budget Period:

68,325.00

1. Total Salary/Wages $ 68,325.00 | 3 3

2. Employee Benefits 3 20,664.00 | 3 - 3 20,664.00

3. Consultants 3 - $ - 3 -

4, Equipment: 3 733.00 13 - b 733.00
Rental $ - 3 - |3 -
Repair and Maintenance 3 - 3 - 3 -

_ Purchase/Depreciation 3 - 3 - 3 -

5. Supplies: 3 - 3 - $ -
Educational $ 1,000,003 § - 3 1,000.00
Lab 3 - 3 - 3 -
Pharmacy 3 - 3 - b -
Medical 3 - $ - 3 -
Office 3 1,833.001 % - $ 1,833.00

6, Travel 3 1,000.00 } $ - 3 1,000.00

7. Occupancy b 7,333.001 8 - $ 7,333.00

8. Current Expenses 3 - 3 -

' Telephone $ 1,467.00 } § - 3 1,467.00
Postage $ 80409 | $ - 3 804.09
Subscripticns 3 - $ - $ -
Audit and Legal 3 - 3 - b -
Insurance 3 - $ - 3 -
Board Expenses b - 3 - 3 -

9. Software 5 - $ - 3 -

10, Marketing/Communications 3 4,650001 3% - 3 4,650.00

11. Staff Education and Training 3 500.00 1 $ - $ 500.00

12. Subcontracts/Agreements 3 - b - 3 -

13. Other (specilic details mandatory): 5 - $ - $ -
Partner/Stakeholder Meetings $ 800.00 | 3 - $ 800.00
Printing 3 - 3 - b -

b - 3 - 3 -
Sub-Total Direct Costs}] 3 109,109.09 | § - 3 109,109.09
14. I[ndirect Costs (not to exceed 10% of direct costs) $ 10,910.91 1 $ - $ 10,910.91
TOTAL. $ 120,020.00 | $ K 120,020.00

DHHS Program/Section Manager Approvag‘i gf






